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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing on the City's Committee

          4  on Transportation.  My name is John Liu, and I have

          5  the privilege of Chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today, we have a few items on our

          7  agenda.  We will conduct a vote on two bills.  The

          8  first bill that we'll vote on is Intro. No. 664,

          9  which seeks to have the Taxi and Limousine

         10  Commission approve at least one hybrid electric

         11  vehicle for use as a New York City taxi cab within

         12  90 days after this bill is enacted into law.

         13                 The problem stems from the fact that

         14  although the City sold 27 medallions in the last

         15  taxi medallion sale designated for alternative-fuel

         16  taxi cabs, none of these alternative-fuel taxi cabs

         17  have been on the road, because the available hybrid

         18  electric vehicles have not been accepted by the Taxi

         19  and Limousine Commission for use as a taxi cab in

         20  New York City.

         21                 The TLC specifications are important

         22  to ensure passenger comfort, but at the same time,

         23  they have kept many of these promising hybrid

         24  vehicles from being used as taxi cabs.

         25                 Our purpose in passing this
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          2  legislation will  help to further the City's policy

          3  of improving air quality and conserving fuel by

          4  allowing a minimal amount of small, hybrid electric

          5  vehicles to be used as taxi cabs in New York City.

          6                 We'll also hold a hearing and vote on

          7  Resolution No. 973 which calls upon the Metropolitan

          8  Transportation Authority to maintain weekend express

          9  bus service from Brooklyn to Midtown Manhattan

         10  beyond the scheduled June 30, 2005 termination date.

         11  This express bus service, as is the case with many

         12  other express bus services lines throughout the

         13  City, has been an important life line for people who

         14  live in the southern part of Brooklyn, particularly

         15  for senior citizens and people with disabilities who

         16  are simply unable to use the subways.

         17                 This express bus service is important

         18  for insuring that all residents of Brooklyn have

         19  access to the goods and services found in Manhattan,

         20  and to ensure that the people who work on weekends

         21  are also able to get to work in a timely manner.

         22                 The bulk of our hearing today will be

         23  an oversight hearing on laws and regulations

         24  enforced by New York City Traffic Enforcement

         25  agents.  Over the years, there have been complaints

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  about perceived ticket blitzes, an increase in a

          3  number of fines, an increase in the amount of fines

          4  related to parking violations, and even some doubt

          5  as to whether tickets are being issued for real

          6  traffic violations.

          7                 The purpose of this oversight hearing

          8  is to develop an insight into exactly what kinds of

          9  procedures are in place, dependent upon the

         10  regulations that have been written, and what kind of

         11  training is given to the City's Traffic Enforcement

         12  Agents to make sure that our laws and regulations

         13  are enforced in an equitable manner for all New York

         14  City residents.

         15                 Just last week, there were additional

         16  reports of quotas for tickets, and this Committee

         17  certainly is concerned about the possible existence

         18  of ticket quotas.  Because while we certainly feel

         19  that people should obey traffic regulations and

         20  parking regulations, fines in violations are

         21  sometimes necessary to encourage desirable behavior,

         22  and discourage harmful behavior.  At the same time,

         23  the existence of quotas would imply something that

         24  is not necessarily in the interest of good

         25  government.
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          2                 And so we will certainly be exploring

          3  these issues in detail at today's hearing.

          4                 We are delighted to be represented of

          5  the Administration, from the Department of

          6  Transportation, and the New York City Police

          7  Department.  And I'd invite you to take a seat at

          8  our witness table at this time.

          9                 We've been joined by Members of the

         10  Committee, Council Member Sara Gonzalez from

         11  Brooklyn, Council Member Joe Addabbo from Queen,

         12  Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx, and

         13  we're also joined by Council Member Vincent Gentile

         14  from Brooklyn.

         15                 And at this time, welcome Mr. Valles

         16  and Mr. Rosen.

         17                 MR. VALLES: Good morning, Mr.

         18  Chairman and members of the Council.  I am John

         19  Valles, Director of the Parking Enforcement

         20  District, of the Chief of Transportation Traffic

         21  Control Division, New York City Police Department.

         22  And on behalf of the Police Commissioner Raymond

         23  Kelly, and Chief of Transportation Michael

         24  Scagnelli, I am pleased to be here today to discuss

         25  the work of our Traffic Enforcement Agents.
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          2                 It is vital to the public safety of

          3  New York City to move motor vehicles through the

          4  City in a safe and efficient manner.  Traffic

          5  Enforcement Agents play a crucial role in

          6  accomplishing this mission.  By preventing traffic

          7  congestion and enabling quick response by the

          8  emergency vehicles, which need to travel the City in

          9  often crowded streets.

         10                 Illegally parking a vehicle may have

         11  a deadly consequence, which the driver may not fully

         12  realize.  For example, parking -- double parking

         13  causes accidents.  Drivers must swerve into adjacent

         14  lanes to avoid a double- parked vehicle.  Sometimes,

         15  jockeying with moving traffic, pedestrians and

         16  bicyclists.  But perhaps the most dangerous

         17  consequence of illegal parking is the potential

         18  obstruction of fire trucks, ambulances, and police

         19  vehicles trying to reach an emergency as quickly as

         20  possible.

         21                 The job of our Traffic Enforcement

         22  Agents is first, and foremost, to prevent those

         23  situations from happening.  Safety is a top priority

         24  of the City's streets.  In partnership with the

         25  Department of Transportation, and other City
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          2  agencies, we continue to see the results of our past

          3  and continuing efforts to reduce accidents, injury,

          4  and fatalities on our roadways through safety

          5  engineering, enforcement, and education.

          6                 The New York City Police Department

          7  is committed to maintaining traffic flow in this

          8  City.  In our TrafficStat process, three vital

          9  elements of traffic flow enforcement are

         10  continuously stressed to our members: Bus stop

         11  violations; no standing violations; and double-

         12  parking.

         13                 Safe and efficient traffic flow

         14  allows the City to function and more important,

         15  prevent accidents.  In 2004, New York City

         16  experienced 291 traffic fatalities, the lowest

         17  number of traffic fatalities since 1910.  Our

         18  mission is to prevent accidents and fatalities using

         19  all of the resources at our command.  But we also

         20  rely on the general public to comply with the laws

         21  and rules of the City.  Our Traffic Enforcement

         22  Agents play a front- line role in ensuring that the

         23  public adheres to City parking regulations for the

         24  safety of all.

         25                 Thank you for your interest in the
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          2  work of the City Traffic Enforcement Agents, and we

          3  will be pleased to answer any questions you may

          4  have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          6                 Assistant Commissioner Victor Rosen

          7  of the DOT.  Do you have testimony or are you here

          8  to answer questions?

          9                 MR. ROSEN: I'm here to answer

         10  questions, Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         12                 I guess we'll kind of start from a

         13  big- picture view. The Traffic Enforcement Agents,

         14  they are a part of the NYPD?

         15                 MR. VALLES: Yes, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Now, are they Police

         17  Officers, or, what's the status of Traffic

         18  Enforcement Agents?  Is there just one kind?  How

         19  many kinds are there?

         20                 MR. VALLES: There are about four

         21  levels of Traffic Enforcement Agents. The first

         22  level is the summons writing.  The second level is

         23  the Traffic Control, that direct traffic.  The third

         24  level are the Towing Operators.  And the fourth,

         25  which we call the Special Patrolman, they are peace
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          2  officers.  They enforce construction sites that

          3  obstruct traffic flow.  They do truck inspections,

          4  and they also help the Highway Emergency Local

          5  Patrol. That's the fourth level.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you said the

          7  first category of Traffic Enforcement Agent are the

          8  people that most Yew Yorkers come into contact with,

          9  whenever there is something to come into contact

         10  for.

         11                 MR. VALLES: Yes. Those are the

         12  summons writers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And roughly how many

         14  do we have in the City?

         15                 MR. VALLES: We have approximately

         16  just about 2,000.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Two thousand Traffic

         18  Enforcement Agents --

         19                 MR. VALLES: In all four levels.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh, in all four.  So

         21  out of the 2,000 total, out of the total 2,000

         22  Traffic Enforcement Agents across all four

         23  categories, roughly how many are in that first

         24  category?

         25                 MR. VALLES: In the first category,
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          2  it's about 1,100.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So 1,100.  And it's

          4  safe to say that these are 1,100 ticket- writing

          5  officers- or Agents, I should say Agents, because

          6  they are not police officers.

          7                 MR. VALLES: They're not police

          8  officers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So 1,100

         10  ticket- writing Agents.  Now the other three

         11  categories of Traffic Enforcement Agents are also

         12  empowered to issue summonses.

         13                 MR. VALLES: They're all empowered to

         14  issue parking summonses.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But does the general

         16  public come into contact with them a whole lot?  Or

         17  not nearly as much as into contact with the first

         18  category?

         19                 MR. VALLES: The first category, there

         20  would be more contact with other than the tow- truck

         21  operators.  But the level two and the level fours

         22  they are a smaller group, they won't have that

         23  contact unless they're in a congested area or in a

         24  construction area where they are directing traffic.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And roughly how many
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          2  are in that third category of Agents that are

          3  engaged in towing vehicles?

          4                 MR. VALLES: There's about 256.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: About 256.  Thank

          6  you.  If only everybody could be as precise with

          7  their approximation.

          8                 Has there been a change, a

          9  significant change in the number of these Agents

         10  over the last couple of years?

         11                 MR. VALLES: I'm not sure of the

         12  question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, out of the

         14  four categories of Traffic Enforcement Agents, you

         15  said there are roughly 2,000 of them.  How many were

         16  there, say in the year 2001, or the year 2000? To

         17  the nearest hundred.

         18                 MR. VALLES: I believe there probably

         19  were about 1,800.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So not a huge

         21  increase, maybe a ten percent increase in Agents.

         22  What about the number of the ticket writing Agents

         23  in that first category?

         24                 MR. VALLES: I believe we got an

         25  authorization to increase by 300 about a year ago.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So there has been an

          3  increase of roughly 300 --

          4                 MR. VALLES: About 300, yes, on the

          5  entry level, which we call the summons writers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  And what's

          7  the average -- is there any way you can tell us the

          8  average service years on the job, these 1,100

          9  ticket- writing Agents have been?

         10                 MR. ROSEN: That would be hard to say.

         11    But a lot of them probably 300 of them are brand

         12  new, so that they have less than two years of

         13  service.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And what kind of

         15  training is given to these ticket- writing Agents?

         16                 MR. VALLES: Their training is a basic

         17  training. They go into our academy, they're trained

         18  in how to interpret signs, how to write summonses

         19  properly.  We now have the electronic hand- held

         20  summonses that pretty much is just a scanning

         21  process where the scanner, where they put it over

         22  the registration, it pretty much puts all the

         23  information of the vehicle onto the summons.

         24                 They are also shown about the

         25  disciplinary, how to carry themselves out in the
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          2  street with courtesy, professionalism, and respect.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The scanning makes

          4  it much more efficient.  They spend less time taking

          5  down information so they can move on to the next --

          6                 MR. VALLES: It's much more accurate,

          7  yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  It allows

          9  them to issue more tickets, and also it decreases

         10  the chance of tickets being thrown out for missing

         11  information.

         12                 MR. VALLES: Not that they will write

         13  more summonses, it's that the accuracy of the

         14  summons is more, because the scanning process is

         15  better.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, the scanning

         17  process improves the accuracy of taking down the

         18  vehicle's information, but the scanner in no way

         19  better identifies whether an actual violation has

         20  taken place.  That's still up to the judgement of

         21  the Enforcement Agent.

         22                 MR. VALLES: A Traffic Agent would

         23  then have to put in the code for that particular

         24  violation, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So they go through
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          2  the academy. Roughly how long is the training at the

          3  academy? For a ticket writing Agent?

          4                 MR. VALLES: The training is about 10

          5  weeks.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Ten weeks of

          7  training.  And they get trained on the law, how to

          8  read the signage, how to write the summonses.  I

          9  mean, they're primary purpose, these 1,100 Agents is

         10  to look for violations and issue summonses when they

         11  find the violation.

         12                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So they go through

         14  10 weeks of academy where they learn about the law,

         15  how to read the signs, and the process of issuing

         16  the summonses.

         17                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Now what are their

         19  qualifications before they get to the academy?

         20                 MR. VALLES: They have to be high

         21  school -- they have to have a high school diploma, a

         22  driver's license, that's about it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So they have

         24  to be a licensed driver and they have to have a high

         25  school diploma.
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          2                 Now these 1,100 ticket- writing

          3  Agents, they don't write, do they write summonses

          4  for moving violations?

          5                 MR. VALLES: No, that would be the

          6  other category, levels two, threes and fours.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, so this group

          8  of 1,100 Agents, their sole purpose is to look for

          9  parking violations, nonmoving violations.

         10                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And take enforcement

         12  action when they see a violation, in other words,

         13  they write a ticket.

         14                 MR. VALLES: Yes, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So they go through

         16   -- they need to have a high school diploma, they

         17  need to be licensed as a driver, then they go

         18  through 10 weeks of training at the Police Academy.

         19  On the parking regulations and signage and the

         20  mechanics, the procedures of how to issue a summons.

         21    Is there anything else that they get trained on?

         22                 MR. VALLES: I don't know, they're

         23  just  -- the courtesy, professionalism, respect.

         24  That pretty much is their training.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  And we know
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          2  that about 300 have about a year or less of service,

          3  because that number was just increased, I think you

          4  said, last year.

          5                 MR. VALLES: Last year, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So what about -- is

          7  there any idea about -- do the ticket- writing

          8  agents stay on the job for many, many years, or do

          9  they generally turn over pretty quickly?

         10                 MR. VALLES: We have a turnover rate

         11  per month of 30. We lose 30 traffic agents a month.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are these out of the

         13  2,000 Agents, or is it out of the 1,000?

         14                 MR. VALLES: Out of the 2,000 Agents

         15  we lose 30 traffic agents, the attrition rate.  And

         16  that includes promotions through the attrition rate.

         17    They go from traffic agents to supervisors.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And the supervisors,

         19  presumably are no longer writing tickets.

         20                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So new people are

         22  recruited to take their place, to continue to find

         23  the violations.

         24                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: See that's about 360
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          2  a year. You're talking about close to a 20 percent

          3  turnover rate among these traffic agents.  So that

          4  really implies that they're not on the job for very

          5  long.

          6                 MR. VALLES:  Some of them go into

          7  supervisory, so it's not that we're losing them all

          8  to go outside of the agency.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, 360 a year

         10  you're losing, so you're bringing 360 mew agents

         11  into the job every single year. There can't be more

         12  than a handful of supervisors, people that get moved

         13  up into supervisor positions, right?  I mean that's

         14  a pretty small number.

         15                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it's still, say

         17  it's 350 new traffic agents every single year.

         18                 MR. VALLES: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Last year, the total

         20  number was increased, so presumably, there were up

         21  to 600 or 700 new agents that have less than a year

         22  of service, because generally speaking- so 600 or

         23  700 new agents this past year, and they go through

         24  10 weeks of training.

         25                 MR. VALLES: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think this is

          3  important for the public to know.  I want to make it

          4  very clear, that it's my personal opinion, and I

          5  believe, the opinion of many, of all of my

          6  colleagues, that traffic regulation, laws and

          7  regulations, are in place for a purpose.  And that

          8  we want to see those traffic regulations enforced to

          9  encourage and to promote safe and desirable behavior

         10  to keep traffic moving.  And that we would not want

         11  undesirable behavior such as a behavior that

         12  endangers other people as well as certain motorists

         13  themselves.

         14                 We want to discourage undesirable

         15  behavior that creates an awful lot of traffic

         16  congestion and pollution.  But at the sane tine, it

         17  is our job to make sure that the way in which these

         18  regulations are enforced in, in fact, the right way

         19  for this enforcement to take place.  And that there

         20  is no unfairness being meted out to our

         21  constituents.

         22                 And we get our fair share of

         23  complaints about unfair summonses being issued,  So

         24  this is -- I just want to be clear that we're trying

         25  to flesh out all of these issues during this
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          2  hearing.

          3                 We've been joined by a number of

          4  other members of the City Council: Council Member

          5  Helen Sears from Queens.  And I forgot to mention

          6  earlier, that if there is anybody here for the

          7  Education Committee Hearing, that hearing is taking

          8  place next door in the Committee Room.  So if you're

          9  waiting for educational issues, go next door.  And

         10  we have several members, myself included that are on

         11  both the Education Committee and the Transportation

         12  Committee.  So you'll see some of us coming back and

         13  forth, in and out.

         14                 Once these new Agents, the ticket-

         15  writing Agents, are put on the job, after 10 weeks

         16  of training, what kind of review process do they

         17  undertake?

         18                 MR. VALLES: Well, Traffic Agents are,

         19  when they are in the academy, they get the training

         20  of how to issue summonses and all.  But they also

         21  get field training prior to be assigned to a

         22  command.  Once they graduate and go into a command,

         23  they have a year probation.  That's where the

         24  supervisors in their commands, evaluate them.  And

         25  that's how we know what their performances are.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The regulations that

          3  these Agents enforce, who writes those regulations?

          4  Is it the NYPD or the DOT?

          5                 MR. VALLES: No, that would be the

          6  Department of Transportation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  I just want

          8  to spend a couple of minutes stepping back a little

          9  bit, and focus on the regulations themselves.  The

         10  regulations are generally on law.

         11                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So what kind of --

         13  is it your Department or is it a division of DOT

         14  that actually writes the regulations that New

         15  Yorkers have to abide by?

         16                 MR. ROSEN: The regulations emanate

         17  from very vast, different areas within the agency.

         18  Many of them come out of the Traffic Bureau.  And

         19  what happens is these regulations are brought

         20  forward within the Department, they're developed

         21  internally, there's a public notice issued, it's

         22  published in the City record that there's going to

         23  be a law change.  There's a 30- day period for a

         24  public hearing to occur.

         25                 If there are no comments, then 30-
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          2  days thereafter, the law will be promulgated.

          3  Again, we publish it in the City Record and it will

          4  become part of the traffic regulations.

          5                 If there are comments, then those

          6  comments are taken into consideration, and the draft

          7  may be revised, based on best judgement of the

          8  Agency, and then promulgated.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Valles testified

         10  that there are three big categories of parking

         11  violations: Bus stops, no standing, and double-

         12  parking.  The regulations concerning these three

         13  kinds of violations have been in place for a long

         14  time, have they not?

         15                 MR. ROSEN: Yes, they have.  Those

         16  violations are the more egregious violations, the

         17  more safety- oriented ones.  There are an array of

         18  regulations that pertain to unregistered,

         19  uninspected vehicles, expired meters, all of the

         20  various types of parking regulations that are all

         21  embodied in the traffic rules.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So these three kinds

         23  of traffic violations are the most egregious,

         24  meaning they affect public safety.  Whereas some of

         25  the other violations have less of an impact, or no
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          2  impact on public safety.  Or no direct impact on

          3  public safety.

          4                 MR. ROSEN: They have an impact, it's

          5  not as direct. For example, if you don't enforce the

          6  meter regulations, you're not creating turnover.  If

          7  you don't have turnover, then you have an increase

          8  in double parking and other violations become more

          9  manifest than they wouldn't if people moved when

         10  they were supposed to.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So do we have some

         12  kind of grasp on the number of violations that have

         13  been issued in the last 12 months or in the year

         14  2004?

         15                 MR. VALLES: Just give us a moment.

         16                 MR. VALLES: From January 1, 2004 to

         17  December 31, 2004, Agency wide, we've issued 7.6

         18  millions summonses.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And are those

         20  summonses issued by the 2,000 Agents?

         21                 MR. VALLES: No, this also includes

         22  Police Officers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Roughly, how much of

         24  that 7.6 million would have been written by these

         25  Traffic Agents?  Are we talking about half of them,

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  three quarters of them?

          3                 MR. VALLES: I believe last year, the

          4  Traffic Agents may have written about 6.1 million.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Are we talking

          6  about all violations or just parking violations?

          7                 MR. VALLES: These are all parking

          8  violations that the Traffic Agents issued. I'm

          9  sorry, the Traffic Control Division issued 5.4

         10  million.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you are the Chief

         12  of the Traffic Control Division.

         13                 MR. VALLES: Right,  That includes the

         14  Traffic Enforcement Agents and the Police Officers

         15  that are assigned to the Traffic Control Division.

         16  That doesn't include the Patrol Services.  The 5.4.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, got it.

         18                 But nonetheless, it is these ticket-

         19  writing agents that issue the bulk of the traffic

         20  violations, the tickets.

         21                 MR. VALLES: Yes, because that is

         22  their primary jobs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure, sure.

         24                 Alright, we have Council Member Sears

         25  who has a question, and I'll be coming back to these

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  questions.  But we'll hear from Council Member Helen

          3  Sears.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair, and good morning.

          6                 My question is, what kind of

          7  harassment complaints do you get from your Traffic

          8  Agents?

          9                 MR. VALLES: I don't we get any

         10  harassment complaints.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You don't get

         12  harassment complaints from people who are being

         13  issued tickets?

         14                 MR. VALLES: No.  We always get

         15  complaints in regards to disputing the summons in

         16  regard to they were like five minutes away from

         17  their car and stuff like that.  But I don't recall

         18  of any complaints regarding harassment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because I have

         20  actually experienced that.  Because certainly,

         21  citywide, and particularly in my district, double

         22  parking is really a nightmare.  And it actually is a

         23  safety issue.  And I've seen some of your Agents

         24  really and truly almost as if they were going to be

         25  attacked.  And I was just asking, because I don't
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          2  know if it's an Intro and never became a bill, but I

          3  know that issues was brought up in the Council, and

          4  that it would be a violation to do that very thing.Because

          5  I have seen Agents to avoid that, just move on.  And

          6  I can't say that they are wrong for doing that.  But

          7  the fact is, I think that that is a serious issue,

          8  and if you're telling me it's not, then your Agents

          9  are really not doing the right thing.  Because I

         10  have seen them move on where the driver, where they

         11  could move the car, they have not.  And they have

         12  just gone on their way because the driver would say

         13   "just a few more minutes", with delivery trucks

         14  being double parked.

         15                 MS. PETITO: Council Member Sears, I

         16  think we misunderstood your question.  You're

         17  referring to Traffic Agents being the victim of

         18  harassment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         20                 MS. PETITO: Absolutely.  That is

         21  definitely --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, not that

         23  they were harassing --

         24                 MS. PETITO:  We didn't understand the

         25  question.  I'm sorry.

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 For several years, we actually

          3  attempted to get State legislation to heighten the

          4  penalties for assaulting a Traffic Enforcement

          5  Agent, which has not been successful.  But we

          6  continue to try.

          7                 We believe that Traffic Enforcement

          8  Agents are a vital part of the Police Department and

          9  we strongly encourage any steps that you could take

         10  in this regard to get an assault on a Traffic Agent

         11  to be a much higher level of assault, because our

         12  Traffic Agents are subject to being spit on, being

         13  attacked, and we really would appreciate your

         14  assistance on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chair, did

         16  we have anything in the Council to that effect, that

         17  was, because I know, because it was for, you know,

         18  City employees, because they are under that.  I can

         19  recall something coming before the Council, but I

         20  honestly must say I don't know if it's still an

         21  Intro or if it's died, or if it's going to be

         22  reinstated again.

         23                 I happen to think that that is a

         24  major problem with your Agents.  I have seen some

         25  very, very offensive things happening.  And I think
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          2  it behooves all of us to somehow reinstate some

          3  respect for the law.

          4                 However, even with that, I know that

          5  in one of the Community Boards in my district, there

          6  were 10,000 summonses issued in one month.  Five

          7  thousand from your Agents, and 5,000 from the Police

          8  Department.  That's a lot, and that's a very

          9  serious, serious thing.  And they were probably

         10  justified summonses.  So what I'm addressing is that

         11  double parking is a very serious issue. That's what

         12  I think needs to be stressed.  And exactly what are

         13  your Agents doing about that?  Because it's a

         14  problem throughout. So that was my question, was the

         15  harassment to your Agents.

         16                 MR. VALLES: I apologize, I

         17  misunderstood.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's alright,

         19  but would you say that is a major issue?

         20                 MR. VALLES: That is a major issue.

         21  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Does that deter

         23  them from giving summonses?

         24                 MR. VALLES: No.  It shouldn't deter

         25  them, but they are --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But they

          3  certainly would avoid some altercations.

          4                 MR. VALLES: Yes.  But that usually

          5  happens with someone's who's already been assaulted

          6  and the Agent now is a little bit more fearful

          7  issuing that type of a summons.  And when

          8  confronted, he'll back off.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Is this an

         10  issue at all five Boroughs?

         11                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Then I think

         13  that we need to look, Mr. Chair, at what kind of

         14  legislation we may do to protect those who are

         15  obeying the law and doing what they have to do.

         16  Because that double parking is a safety issue, it's

         17  gone beyond one of convenience for a few minutes.

         18  And I think why we need to have that enforced and I

         19  would urge your Agents, when somebody is sitting

         20  behind the car, let alone when they've just

         21  abandoned the car, and there is no driver, that that

         22  driver must move on.

         23                 There seems to be a lax with that.

         24                 MR. VALLES: Well what normally

         25  happens with the Traffic Agent when it escalates
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          2  into a confrontation, they have the ability of

          3  calling for assistance.  A sector car would respond

          4  to the location so that the Agents would be able to

          5  complete the summons that they started writing.  As

          6  well as their own supervisors, the Traffic

          7  Enforcement Supervisors, would also respond to that.

          8

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Alright, I

         10  think that you've answered my question.  Thank you

         11  very much.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         13  Member Sears. Your point is well taken.  We should

         14  look into whether there is pending legislation in

         15  support of providing more protection for these

         16  Traffic Enforcement Agents.

         17                 It certainly not something that we

         18  would like to see where people who are employees of

         19  this City even those who are charged with

         20  undertaking this rather unpleasant task of issuing

         21  tickets, we would not want to see any of them put at

         22  risk.  And so, to the extent that we can help push

         23  for additional protections for these individual

         24  employees, we would certainly do that.

         25                 It's not the individual Agents that
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          2  are the subject of this hearing.  It's more the

          3  framework in which they work, and what kinds of

          4  directions are given to these Agents.

          5                 So once again, I go back to the 1,100

          6  ticket- writing Agents in this City who have issued

          7  the bulk of  -- they haven't issued all 7.6 million

          8  summonses, but they have issued over 5 million of

          9  those summonses in a one- year period.  Now, the

         10  sole objective of these ticket- writing Agents is to

         11  write tickets.  And they undergo a 10- week

         12  training.  Is there a periodic training that the

         13  City requires, or is it just a one- time training

         14  and --

         15                 MR. VALLES: No, we have ongoing in-

         16  service training at the commands.  As well as prior

         17  to their graduation, they get a final exam to make

         18  sure that they complete the course in the Police

         19  Department.

         20                 When they're assigned to the

         21  commands, they're usually put with a supervisor or

         22  an experienced Traffic Agent to patrol, to make sure

         23  that they are familiarized with the geographic area

         24  of their patrols, how to write the summonses again,

         25  and every, I would say, every week, one day a week,
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          2  training is conducted for Traffic Agents, all

          3  Traffic Agents, seasonal and new ones to keep them

          4  abreast to any changes in the regulations as well as

          5  the violations in certain areas.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How much discretion

          7  does a Traffic Agent have in issuing these

          8  summonses?

          9                 MR. VALLES: Actually, Traffic Agents

         10  do not have any discretion with the exception of for

         11  emergency purposes.  Such as a person double parked

         12  and they're bringing out a wife or girlfriend that's

         13  embraced and about to give birth, then they would

         14  have that discretion.  Other than that, if it's a

         15  matter of disputing the summons, a supervisor will

         16  be called or a responding sector car will respond

         17  there.

         18                 But they're into the adjudication

         19  process that to dispute any summons that are issued

         20  by the Department of Finance.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So in other words,

         22  the Traffic Enforcement Agent is instructed to do

         23  their job.  They have to do their job.  And there's

         24  very little discretion that they can exercise in

         25  deciding whether to issue a summons or not.
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          2                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So when they write a

          4  summons, the Traffic Agent is simply doing his or

          5  her job.

          6                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The way in which

          8  they are instructed to do their jobs, number one, I

          9  do have to say at this point that 10 weeks of

         10  training for these Agents that come into contact

         11  with a lot of the public, I think we would like to

         12  see exactly what happens in that training.  But that

         13  I'll leave to the purview of Peter Vallone who is

         14  the Chair of the Public Safety Committee.

         15                 As far as the promotional practices,

         16  or the review practices of the Traffic Enforcement

         17  Agents, the ticket writing agents, how are they

         18  judged upon their success?

         19                 MR. VALLES: Well, there are different

         20  mechanisms for the evaluation.  One is the accuracy

         21  of how they issue summonses. Complaints is also

         22  taken in consideration.  You have some individuals

         23  that receive too many complaints in regard to they

         24  issued the summonses, or how they are issuing the

         25  summonses. Attendance, you know, there are variables
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          2  in evaluating Traffic Agents.  But definitely their

          3  performance is thoroughly the top priority in their

          4  evaluations.  It's how they write the summons, how

          5  accurate the summons is.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So when they first

          7  get sent out, they're instructed that they are going

          8  to be judged on the accuracy of the tickets that

          9  they write?

         10                 MR. VALLES: They are told about how

         11  to write to summons and all, and then at the end of

         12  each of the tours, their summonses are reviewed.  In

         13  other words, what happens is sometimes they make a

         14  mistake in how they issued the summons, and that is

         15  corrected by the supervisor, telling them in the

         16  future, you should write the summons correctly, or

         17  how to interpret the signs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And what about the

         19  complaints?  Are they told that they can't get more

         20  than a certain number of complaints?

         21                 MR. VALLES: We review the complaints.

         22    We review the individual complaints.  Sometimes

         23  it's a matter of that a Traffic Agent is -- you

         24  know, we get these type of complaints that he's

         25  lurking around the corner, and as soon as the meter
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          2  expires, the Agent came and wrote the summons.  So

          3  we look at that.  Every complaint that we receive,

          4  we review to see if there is any validity to it.

          5  And then, that's how we judge the Agent as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you've mentioned

          7  two performance measures I suppose.  The accuracy of

          8  the summons that's being written, and the

          9  complaints.  Are there any other performance

         10  measures that you want to bring to our attention?

         11                 MR. VALLES: It's just a matter of how

         12  they patrol. Supervisors are constantly out there

         13  checking on them, so, it has to do with their other

         14  things, such as attendance and the mannerism in how

         15  they carry themselves out on patrol.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The primary purpose

         17  of these ticket- writing Agents is to write tickets.

         18  Do you judge them on the number of tickets that they

         19  write?

         20                 MR. VALLES: No, we judge them by the

         21  accuracy of the summonses.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So there is -- when

         23  considering promotion to supervisor, as you had

         24  mentioned before, there is absolutely no

         25  consideration for the number of tickets that they've
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          2  written?

          3                 MS. PETITO: Mr. Chairman, let me

          4  address that.

          5                 Because it is a question about

          6  quotas.  And what we consider the number --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No, I've only asked

          8  about the number of performance measures.

          9                 MS. PETITO: And I would reiterate

         10  that the performance measures for Traffic

         11  Enforcement Agents should not be confused with

         12  quotas as has been eluded to in the past.

         13  Performance measures also include productivity.  And

         14  that means, that if a Traffic Agent is out in public

         15  for the purpose of addressing parking violations,

         16  one would expect, that if there are parking

         17  violations, that the summonses would be issued.

         18                 So as part of the overall performance

         19  as Traffic Agent, the number of parking summonses

         20  which has been issued is certainly part of an

         21  overall assessment of their productivity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, why didn't you

         23  just say that? When I asked you, you mentioned two

         24  measures for performance.  You mentioned the

         25  accuracy of the summonses, you mentioned the number
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          2  of complaints that may have been lodged against the

          3  particular Agent, and so I'm glad Ms. Petito

          4  mentioned that there is also a measurement of

          5  performance in terms of productivity.  I think

          6  that's the word that you used, productivity.  What's

          7  productivity? Is it the number of tickets issued?

          8                 MR. VALLES: Productivity is measured

          9  by the command. You take an average, the average

         10  number of summonses that are issued by the command,

         11  and you come with to reason that if the command runs

         12  X amount of summonses, that's the expectation that

         13  you have for all the Agents to write.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So there's like a

         15  bell curve within a particular precinct for tickets

         16  written.  Are you  saying that some precincts

         17  average fewer tickets than other precincts?

         18                 MR. VALLES: Yes, it depends on the

         19  geographic area of those precincts. Because you have

         20  commercial areas, and then you have residential

         21  areas.  The violations are less in residential areas

         22  than you would in commercial areas.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that's by

         24  precinct?

         25                 MR. VALLES: That would be by the
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          2  precinct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the productivity

          4  is measured at the precinct level?

          5                 MR. VALLES: By our commands.  We have

          6   -- our commands are different than police

          7  precincts.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Commands being

          9  something like, Manhattan North, Manhattan South --

         10                 MR. VALLES: Right, and South Commands

         11  are really -- we have only 19 commands City wide.

         12  So in Manhattan, we have three commands that does

         13  all of Manhattan.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So then -- how many

         15  commands are there?  Are there nine commands in the

         16  whole --

         17                 MR. VALLES: Nineteen, nineteen

         18  commands City wide.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Nineteen commands in

         20  the whole City?

         21                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And the

         23  productivity, meaning the number of tickets issued

         24  is measured at the command level.

         25                 MR. VALLES: At the command level.

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there a

          3  comparison of all the 19 commands in the City, or

          4  are they judged completely separately in terms of

          5  productivity at the command level?

          6                 MR. VALLES: At the command level,

          7  it's the average by that command.  But the City

          8  wide, then there's a City wide average that when

          9  they lump all the City wide numbers, they come up

         10  with an average number of summonses that are issued

         11  per person.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me take one step

         13  back.  The commands are also judged by the

         14  productivity.  Each of the 19 commands is judged for

         15  its productivity in terms of the number of tickets

         16  issued.

         17                 MR. VALLES: They have expectations at

         18  each of the commands, because each one has different

         19  geographic areas.  Some commands don't have as many

         20  commercial areas as others.  We take Manhattan, in

         21  Manhattan, we would look at the command a little bit

         22  differently than we would a command in Brooklyn

         23  South.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you mentioned

         25  expectation at the command level.  What's the
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          2  expectation for Manhattan South?

          3                 MR. VALLES: Well, we look at the

          4  number of summonses based on last year's

          5  performance, and what they're doing now, and we come

          6  up with an average of what do we have because last

          7  year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well you say

          9  performance, I was talking about productivity.

         10  Performance means a lot of different things.  Are

         11  you talking about performance of productivity when

         12  you say "last year"?

         13                 MR. VALLES: Well, what we produced

         14  last year --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Last year's

         16  productivity, meaning the number of tickets.

         17                 MR. VALLES: Right.  And then we base

         18  that with this year's.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So do we try to do

         20  better year after year?

         21                 MS. PETITO: No, I think Mr. Chair,

         22  we're confusing expectation with requirement.  This

         23  is only to judge, to know, what was our experience

         24  last year, gives us some reasonable expectation of

         25  the level of activity for the next year.
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          2                 But, that certainly varies according

          3  to personnel situations, changes in the laws,

          4  changes in rules.  So that's what we want.  I think

          5  that gets merged in the public mind.  A requirement

          6  is not what we're talking.  We're talking about

          7  assessing what has happened in the past for purposes

          8  of planning for the future.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but Susan,

         10  we're not talking about what's in the public.  I'm

         11  just trying to understand the testimony that we're

         12  hearing right now.  From the Director, just before,

         13  each of the commands have a certain expectation and

         14  that's what they are judged upon.  Is that accurate,

         15  or not accurate?

         16                 MS. PETITO: I think each of the

         17  commands has a prior performance which creates an

         18  expectation for what might occur in the new year,

         19  but that again, is not a requirement.  It's not

         20  something that is used as a benchmark by itself.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, that's fine,

         22  but Director Valles, if the expectation, based on

         23  last year's productivity is not met in the current

         24  year, does that have a negative ramification for

         25  that command, or does that no impact whatsoever on
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          2  the assessment of the effectiveness of that command?

          3                 MR. VALLES: We look at it to see why

          4   -- we always look at it, in fact, to find out why

          5  there was a change in the productivity.  It could be

          6  the changes of the parking regulations where --

          7  let's just say they removed meters in certain areas.

          8    And they've made alternate side of the street

          9  parking.  We know that that particular patrol area

         10  now has less summonses that you're going to issue in

         11  that area because the change in the regulation. So

         12  we look at it, we look at the reasons why.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure, you look at

         14  the reasons why, but after you have figured out what

         15  causes why the numbers may have increased or

         16  decreased, there's a reason why you're looking at

         17  what you said is the productivity, based on last

         18  year, and the expectation of the current year.

         19  There's a reason you're doing that, isn't there?

         20                 MR. VALLES: We're looking at it just

         21  to assure us that we're still maintaining our

         22  patrols out there, and if there has to be a change

         23  in how we patrol the areas.  If we're sending

         24  resources --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: When you say
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          2   "patrols", you're talking about ticket- writing

          3  Agents?

          4                 MR. VALLES: Traffic Agents --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You call them

          6  patrols also.

          7                 MR. VALLES: Right.  When they go out,

          8  if there was a change in regulations, there doesn't

          9  seem to be a reason, like I said, if the regulation

         10  was changed from meter to alternate side street

         11  parking, then I would have to change our patrol

         12  method because we don't want to waste our resources

         13  in areas that it's not going to be productive.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So in other words,

         15  you want to be more efficient in the way you deploy

         16  the ticket- writing Agents?

         17                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the command is

         19  judged on the productivity.  I mean, this is,

         20  correct me if I'm wrong, but this is what we're

         21  hearing from you, that the command is judged -- each

         22  of the 19 commands in New York City is judged on the

         23  productivity which is the number of tickets written.

         24    If there's a decrease in productivity from one

         25  year to the next, then you try to figure out why is
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          2  it.  Perhaps certain streets, or certain section of

          3  streets had their parking regulations changed.  And

          4  so that might justify a decrease in the

          5  productivity.

          6                 But nonetheless, there is still an

          7  assessment, a performance measure based on the

          8  productivity, based on the number of tickets

          9  written.  And if there's a decrease, you need to

         10  figure out why there was a decrease.

         11                 MS. PETITO: That's correct, except we

         12  would disagree with the use of the word "judged".

         13  Because, what we're looking at is an ongoing dynamic

         14  evaluation of how we deploy our resources. And so,

         15  it's not -- the word "judge" implies a negative.

         16  All it is, is an assessment.  It's to look at are we

         17  effectively deploying our resources, and so that's

         18  the one area I would disagree with, that it would

         19  not be a judgement against the command, but simply

         20  an evaluation of how the resources of how the

         21  resources are being deployed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, okay.  If one

         23  command did better in productivity, in the number of

         24  tickets issued, compared to the previous year, and a

         25  second command did worse, how would you re- jigger
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          2  the deployment?  Would you send more Agents to the

          3  command that issued fewer tickets?  How does that

          4  work then? Because you're saying that you're looking

          5  at these numbers as a dynamic way of deploying the

          6  resources effectively. So in that example, how does

          7   -- what happens?

          8                 MS. PETITO: Well, it would depend on

          9  the reason for the change in the numbers, as

         10  Director Valles is talking about.  If we found that

         11  the traffic rules in a particular area had changed

         12  so that there were less summonses to write in that

         13  area, then we would figure out where we should

         14  deploy that extra number of Traffic Agents --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Then what about in

         16  the cases where there is no explanation for the

         17  reduction in the number of tickets written?  I'm

         18  sure that's happened before.

         19                 MS. PETITO: I don't know that that's

         20  the case.

         21                 MR. VALLES: We haven't run into

         22  situations like that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You never --

         24                 MR. VALLES: In situations, there's

         25  always a balloon effect.  When regulations are
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          2  changed.  Where you decrease on one area, you most

          3  likely will increase in violations in other areas.

          4                 By making parking spaces more

          5  available, that means you have less turnover at that

          6  curb space, people will go somewhere else to park,

          7  and then --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And then different

          9  violations will occur.

         10                 MR. VALLES: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, you see, I mean

         12  you've just spent the last ten minutes talking about

         13  how you look at the productivity at the command

         14  level.  And then you use that to strategically

         15  deploy limited resources to enforce parking

         16  regulations, which is fine.

         17                 But now what you're saying, it almost

         18  says that we don't actually expect there to be big

         19  changes in the number of violations just because

         20  parking regulations are changing.  So from year to

         21  year, there doesn't seem to be anything that would

         22  justify a decrease or an increase in the number of

         23  violations issued at the command level.  I mean,

         24  you're saying there's not that many changes that

         25  would affect the ticket- writing productivity.
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          2                 MS. PETITO: Mr. Chairman, I think

          3  that there are always changes, but what Director

          4  Valles is saying, I think, is that because people in

          5  the City want to park, or they want to be in certain

          6  places where they're not allowed to be, that there

          7  will always be a baseline level of illegal parking

          8  in the City.  And so, when he's talking about the

          9  balloon affect, it's a shift -- we would have to

         10  follow the shift with resources to address the bump

         11  in illegal parking in the other location now.  It's

         12  been addressed in one place, and it moves to another

         13  place, we have to be able to redeploy our resources.

         14    And as he says, the violations themselves might

         15  change.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Even within a

         17  borough, even within a command level, you state that

         18  you look at the averages for a command.  So could

         19  you clarify what that means, when you say that the

         20  Department looks at the averages within a command?

         21  The average productivity?

         22                 MR. VALLES: We look at the again, the

         23  number of summonses that are issued by the command,

         24  and you take that by the number of resources that

         25  you have, and you come up with an average of how
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          2  many summonses per person is issued. And that's how

          3  we base what an Agent in that particular command

          4  would write in that command.  Based on the number of

          5  summonses in the command and the number of persons

          6  that you deployed and it comes up to an average.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But the averages

          8  don't really change that much at the command level

          9  from year to year.

         10                 MR. VALLES: No, not much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because you might,

         12  as you said before, some traffic regulations might

         13  change on one block or another, and they're somehow

         14  offset.  And the commands are actually big enough

         15  where, you know, certain changes -- the expectations

         16  just don't change from one year to the next.

         17                 So the averages within each command

         18  don't change very much from one year to the next.

         19  Now what happens if an Agent comes in with

         20  significantly less than that average or that

         21  expectation?

         22                 MR. VALLES: Well, we have a mechanism

         23  where we send out a supervisor to actually give what

         24  we call, a one- on- one.  The supervisor actually

         25  goes out with that particular Agent to see what
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          2  deficiencies that Agent may have.  He may be

          3  hesitant in writing summonses, particular summonses.

          4    Or, he's just -- he or she, isn't completely up to

          5  performance.  Because this is not a very well liked

          6  job, and the Agents are not very well liked.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's a tough job.

          8                 MR. VALLES: It is, and some people

          9  just seem to shy away on -- it's not a job for them.

         10    You can say, it's not the job for them.  But we

         11  need to find that out.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the presumption

         13  is that there are all these -- I mean, what you're

         14  saying is there's what sounds like what you're

         15  saying is there's a presumption that there are all

         16  these violations out there, and you just have to

         17  have the person that's willing, that has I guess the

         18  stomach, for the job.  That can go out there and

         19  without hesitation, write those summonses for

         20  violations, of course, but still, go ahead and write

         21  those summonses.

         22                 Is it, isn't it possible that perhaps

         23  the area that that person is patrolling, to use your

         24  words, that the area that that Agent is patrolling

         25  is actually experiencing a higher compliance of
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          2  traffic regulations, or is that just unheard of,

          3  that people in general, do not comply better with

          4  parking regulations?

          5                 MR. VALLES: That's not unheard of.

          6  We have areas that we have managed to get compliance

          7  on and that's again, when we go ahead and redeploy

          8  the Traffic Agent to another area.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But you wouldn't

         10  keep that Agent in the area because there aren't --

         11  why wouldn't you keep  --

         12                 MR. VALLES: We're not taking the

         13  Agent completely out, what we're doing is

         14  redeploying some of the resources. Because we could

         15  have -- we have actually three shifts, so maybe

         16  during the certain times, like you would say, the

         17  first shift, they're not getting the violations as

         18  they used to, so we scale down on that shift, but

         19  still continue to put out resources on the other two

         20  shifts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: They're not getting

         22  the violations or they're not getting the number of

         23  tickets that they used to.  I mean, it still implies

         24  that there's a number, and expectation, an average.

         25  The expectation does not change from year to year at
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          2  the command level, it more or less stays the same.

          3  That's what you've testified to.  The expectation is

          4  the average that the Agents within a command are

          5  judged by.

          6                 Given that they don't change -- the

          7  numbers don't change year to year, the Agents at

          8  some point, are smart enough to figure out what kind

          9  of expectation is being looked at for this current

         10  year that they're working in, and what it's going to

         11  take for the Agents to meet that expectation.

         12                 Whether you call it expectation, or

         13  average, or baseline number, without using that "q"

         14  word, it's still results in the same thing, that

         15  these Agents are out there, under pressure, to meet

         16  their expectation, their baseline number, their

         17  average. Whatever you want to call it.  So it's

         18  important that -- you know, let's just call the

         19  shots where they fall.  I mean, let's just say --

         20  let's just call it what it is.  Let's say what it is

         21  so that the public has a better understanding of

         22  what's happening out there.

         23                 MS. PETITO: And, Mr. Chairman, we

         24  would strongly disagree with your concept of this.

         25  It is not a judgement on the Agent.  What it
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          2  requires is for us to look at the deployment issue.

          3  For example, in the example that Director Valles

          4  gave, what it might mean, that there are not a lot

          5  of violations being committed, in a particular area

          6  is that the enforcement has worked, and people know

          7  that if they are parking illegally, they will get a

          8  summons. And so that is a success in or view.  And

          9  that means that we're happy to get fewer violations

         10  in that area, because more people are complying with

         11  the law.

         12                 But of course, it's incumbent upon us

         13  to use our Traffic Enforcement Agents resources

         14  wisely.  And so, we learn form the different levels.

         15    But it is not a judgement, necessarily, on the

         16  performance of an individual Traffic Enforcement

         17  Agent if they don't get that summons in that

         18  location.  We're actually happy that more people are

         19  parking legally sometimes.

         20                 So that's the nuance, that's the

         21  refinement that I think we need to bring forth.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So sometimes you

         23  conclude from a reduction in the number of tickets

         24  an Agent is writing, you conclude that there is

         25  better compliance on those blocks that are being
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          2  patrolled by that Agent.  But then, sometimes, you

          3  conclude that it's necessary to have a one- on- one

          4  between the supervisor and the Agent to figure out

          5  why is it that the Agent is not writing as many

          6  tickets.

          7                 MR. VALLES: Well, again, if I've

          8  deployed -- let's just take one shift.  If I've

          9  deployed -- because we rotate the Traffic Agents in

         10  the patrol.  We don't normally keep them every day

         11  in the sane area.  So, if I deploy an Agent who

         12  brings me more summonses, and another agent goes and

         13  brings me much less summonses, we want to know

         14  what's the difference.  It could be the day of the

         15  week, it could be the compliance issue, it could be

         16  a lot of variables there and that's why we send a

         17  supervisor out so the supervisor can give us a

         18  feedback whether it was compliance, whether it was a

         19  change in regulations, or other issues such as the

         20  hesitance of that particular Agent in writing a

         21  summons.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Alright.  Let me

         23  turn it over to my colleagues.  We have questions

         24  from Council Member Seabrook.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you
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          2  very much Mr. Chairman.  Good morning, Chief.  Just

          3  a couple of questions that I'd like to ask you.

          4                 One is what a  quota?

          5                 MS. PETITO: Well, I believe a common

          6  understanding of a quota is that if a person does

          7  not meet a certain number or expectation that they

          8  will receive disciplinary action.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And if they

         10  reach a number -- so a quota can be reaching a

         11  number or not reaching a number. The definition is

         12   --

         13                 MS. PETITO: The quota is the number.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: The number.

         15  It's the expectations.  So a quota does not exist in

         16  that Department.

         17                 MS. PETITO: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: No.  Okay.

         19                 Has there ever been a time that

         20  ticket writing has decreased consecutively in a two-

         21  year period in the last 20 years?

         22                 MS. PETITO: I don't know.  We can

         23  check that for you.  I'm sorry, I don't know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: If you could

         25  do that, that would be good to see.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Excuse me, Council

          3  Member Seabrook. But I think, correct me if I'm

          4  wrong though.  Earlier you testified that we

          5  generally do not see reductions in the number of

          6  tickets written.

          7                 MS. PETITO: We would have to check.

          8  I don't know over a 20- year period what the

          9  differences might be.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Alright.  So

         11  if you can provide us with that information.

         12                 Secondly, has this agency, or this

         13  Department ever suffered any layoffs or budget cuts

         14  in the last four years?

         15                 MS. PETITO: In the last four years

         16  from budget cuts? No, I don't believe -- well, are

         17  you talking about uniformed officers or Traffic

         18  Enforcement Agents?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Traffic

         20  Enforcement.

         21                 MS. PETITO: No, I believe the number

         22  was increased last year as part of the budget

         23  process.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So it was

         25  increased.  And the previous years, it did not
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          2  suffer any cuts in the last three years.

          3                 MS. PETITO: I don't know.

          4                 MR. VALLES: Not that we know.

          5                 MS. PETITO: Not that we know of.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So there has

          7  been hiring and an increase in the budget for

          8  traffic.

          9                 MS. PETITO: For Traffic Enforcement

         10  Agents, right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And you are

         12  hiring people now.

         13                 MS. PETITO: Well, I believe it's a

         14  continuous process because of the attrition issue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.  You

         16  indicated that there is rewards for people who don't

         17  write a lot of summonses because that means the job

         18  performance is good.  You indicated that there are

         19  places where people do not -- how many people have

         20  been promoted for the lack of giving summonses.

         21                 MR. VALLES: We don't promote because

         22  of the amount of summonses --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But that

         24  would be applauded performance.

         25                 MR. VALLES: No.  In order to be
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          2  promoted you have to pass a Civil Service test.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Oh, okay.

          4  But performance, on the basis of a supervisor report

          5  giving an evaluation of the individual, and you

          6  indicated if there is a lack of giving out

          7  summonses, that means that people are adhering to

          8  traffic violations.  What type of evaluation is

          9  given, and how many  that you can provide this

         10  Committee with people who have actually gotten

         11  satisfactory evaluations for the lack of tickets

         12  issued in a particular sector.

         13                 MS. PETITO: Councilman, I don't

         14  believe it would work that way.  What we're looking

         15  at is deployment issues when we're talking about

         16  being happy that summonses are down in a particular

         17  location.  Because it looks like the general public

         18  is complying with the parking rules.  But --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But you are

         20  evaluating that individual who is working that

         21  sector.

         22                 MS. PETITO: What we're looking at is

         23  why that amount decreased.  The number of summonses

         24  decreased.  And we need to use that person

         25  elsewhere.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But has that

          3  been noted in that person's personnel file to say

          4  that they are actually performing a good service and

          5  a good job by the lack of tickets and people

          6  adhering to violations?  Could you show us that that

          7  is happening?

          8                 MS. PETITO: I don't know that it

          9  would drill down to the individual level.  Because

         10  it would probably be consistent among several

         11  agents.  If there was enhanced enforcement, and then

         12  more compliance on the part of the public.  But we

         13  can look further into that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So how do

         15  you -- part of your evaluation that you use as it

         16  relates to performance, how is that category dealt

         17  with on your form our in a statement as to how a

         18  person is performing?  How is that put in

         19  documentation to the individual, because each

         20  individual is given a work performance, correct?

         21                 MS. PETITO: Yes.  An evaluation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So that

         23  evaluation, how is that evaluation?  And what is the

         24  percentage of people that are evaluated based on the

         25  lack of issuance of summonses, and the allowance of
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          2  adhering to good traffic enforcement and the lack of

          3  violations?  How many?

          4                 MS. PETITO:  I don't know a number.

          5  We would have to get back to you on that to see if

          6  it would be reflected on individual Traffic

          7  Enforcement Agents.  Evaluations, as opposed to, for

          8  example, a unit citation or something accruing to

          9  the command instead of to an individual Agent.  So

         10  we'll have to get back to you on that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And last

         12  question Mr. Chairman.

         13                 What is the highest number of

         14  summonses that an individual also a sector, has

         15  written in one year?  And has there ever been an

         16  accommodation for anyone writing X number of

         17  summonses in this Department?

         18                 MS. PETITO: I don't believe so.  No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But you

         20  don't know that as a fact.

         21                 MS. PETITO: No.  We don't know that

         22  as a fact.  We don't know the number here.  I don't

         23  know that we collect it.  We would try to find that

         24  out for you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4  Questions from Council Member Addabbo.  We've also

          5  been joined by Council Member Lanza, from Staten

          6  Island; Council Member Reyna, from Brooklyn and

          7  Queens; and Council Member Martinez, from Manhattan.

          8                 Council Member Addabbo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         10  very much Mr. Chair and to this panel.  And good

         11  morning.  I do appreciate the entire panel's time

         12  and testimony today.

         13                 Director Valles, a question.  I'm

         14  sure your agency was told of what the topic was

         15  today, and what issues we might be discussing.  But,

         16  and all due respect to you, your agency and the work

         17  that the Agents do.  I find it very odd about the

         18  vagueness of your statement.  The one- page

         19  statement that really gave no indication, and no

         20  mention of the productivity, the quantity of

         21  summonses issued, the performance standards.

         22                 Again, we appreciate preventing

         23  traffic congestion. We appreciate the safety as your

         24  top priority.  But again, I just thought it was kind

         25  of odd about the vagueness of your opening
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          2  statement.  Any particular reason for that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just to be fair to

          4  our representatives from the Administration today,

          5  the hearing was a hearing on the laws and

          6  regulations enforced by City Traffic Enforcement

          7  Agents.  The issue of the numbers of tickets being

          8  issued and possible expectations or baselines,

          9  that's an issue that has come up more recently, just

         10  in the last few day.  But the overall thing is, the

         11  overall issue of this hearing was the regulation and

         12  enforcement of traffic regulations.

         13                 So I certainly wouldn't fault Mr.

         14  Valles for his opening statement.  But please

         15  proceed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: But the

         17  agency was given questions that was going to be

         18  asked, correct?  Or no?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that his

         20  opening statement addresses the overall topic, but

         21  they're here to answer our questions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, thank

         23  you Mr. Chair.

         24                 To the panel, Director, a question.

         25  Going back to the number of tickets that were
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          2  issued, again, that five million tickets issued, do

          3  you know, again, obviously everybody knows about the

          4  fiscal situation the City is in, do we know how much

          5  revenue that does bring in, dollar amount wise?

          6                 MR. VALLES: We wouldn't know.  The

          7  Department of Finance would.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I mean in

          9  simple math, if you issue about five million or so,

         10  than average about $100 dollars a ticket or so.  I

         11  mean we're talking close to somewhere between a half

         12  a million, half a billion to close to a billion.

         13  But you have no numbers on that?

         14                 MR. VALLES: No.  We have no numbers.

         15  That would fall under the jurisdiction of the

         16  Department of Finance.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And is there

         18  also a Department of Finance who goes out to collect

         19  outstanding balances, again, tickets that were

         20  issued, revenue not coming in.  Which agency do you

         21  work with in trying to get back those outstanding

         22  tickets?

         23                 MR. VALLES: We wouldn't do that.

         24  That would be the Department of Finance and the

         25  Sheriff's Department, or the City Marshals.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Your duty and

          3  obligation ends the moment you write the ticket?

          4                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chair, if

          6  I may, just to make a request that we can contact

          7  the Department of Finance and find out basically how

          8  much revenue we are to come in, really, how much is

          9  out there outstanding?  If we may?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.  Of course, but

         11  I think your ballpark estimate of half a billion to

         12  a billion dollars worth of revenues expected from

         13  parking violations is on the mark.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you Mr.

         15  Chair.  Thank you very much to the panel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         17  Member Addabbo.

         18                 Council Member Gentile.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you Mr.

         20  Chairman, and Director Valles, and those at the

         21  table. Thank you for being here today.

         22                 I think you will get no argument from

         23  any of us here about the role that Traffic Agents

         24  play in keeping our streets safe and ridding our

         25  streets from potential obstructions for safety
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          2  vehicles.  I think you get no argument from any of

          3  us up here as to that role the Traffic Agents play.

          4  I believe, however, it goes beyond that, and it

          5  struck me this morning that you have testified, Mr.

          6  Valles, Director, about the training program for

          7  these Agents. You say you have 1,100 Agents on the

          8  street, and each of those Agents go through a 10-

          9  week training program.  Is that correct?

         10                 MR. VALLES: Yes, that's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Ten weeks.

         12  That's two and a half months of training for each

         13  Agent that goes out on the street.

         14                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And when they

         16  go out on the street after that two and a half

         17  month, 10- week training, you give them no

         18  discretion, no discretion on the streets of New

         19  York.

         20                 That sounds to me that either you

         21  don't have much confidence in your training program,

         22  or you don't have much confidence in your Agents.

         23  After a 10- week training program, to send them out

         24  onto the streets and tell them they have no

         25  discretion.
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          2                 MS. PETITO: What it means, is that

          3  they are doing a very difficult job, and they need

          4  to know clearly what the expectations are of them.

          5  As Director Valles pointed out before, they do have

          6  limited discretion under extreme emergency

          7  conditions, for example, a medical emergency that

          8  they may exercise.

          9                 But, it is safer for them, in this

         10  highly contentious area, not to have discretion,

         11  because then, they will not necessarily get into the

         12  kinds of confrontations that they might get into

         13  with people who are upset about getting parking

         14  tickets.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And I believe

         16  the opposite is true.  And I'll address that in just

         17  a moment.

         18                 But do you also, and I'm told

         19  listening to your testimony this morning, that

         20  during this 10- week training program, you talk and

         21  you teach them about courtesy, professionalism, and

         22  respect.  CPR.  That's part, I believe a significant

         23  part, of your 10- week training program.  Correct?

         24                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 Do you see, Director, that by putting

          4  these Agents out on the street with no discretion

          5  except for extreme, extreme emergencies, that by

          6  putting them out on the street in that regard, with

          7  no discretion, that they cannot exercise courtesy,

          8  professionalism, and respect.

          9                 Instead, because you give them no

         10  discretion, they will write a ticket that no matter

         11  what the situation might be, and instead of

         12  exercising courtesy, professionalism, and respect,

         13  what you engender from New Yorkers who, for whatever

         14  reason, and I will go into that in a minute, are

         15  receiving tickets left and right, up and down, you

         16  engender frustration and anger from New Yorkers on a

         17  day- to- day basis.

         18                 Rather, than allow them to display

         19  the courtesy, professionalism, and respect because

         20  you know, and I know, the streets are a dynamic

         21  situation.  A dynamic situation and situations and

         22  circumstances change all the time.  And without that

         23  discretion, you are not allowing CPR, you are

         24  engendering frustration.  That's what you're doing.

         25                 MS. PETITO: We strongly disagree with
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          2  your contention.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It is

          4  incompatible.  I'll tell you, let me just cite a few

          5  examples, and we have some witnesses who will talk

          6  about this in a few minutes.

          7                 The frustration that you are

          8  engendering on the streets of New York, one person.

          9                 Reading from a letter -- "My husband

         10  has cancer. And a few months ago I took him to the

         11  bank on 13th Avenue in Brooklyn.  I double parked to

         12  let him out of the car, and a Traffic Agent came up

         13  beside me and gave me a ticket while I was waiting

         14  for him.  I did not see the Agent pull up behind me.

         15    I was not double parked more than two minutes."

         16                 Now, obviously, they're not allowed

         17  to warn the motorists, they're not allowed to ask

         18  them to move.  Because you have given them no

         19  discretion.  And this person, whose husband has

         20  cancer, dropped him off at the front of the bank,

         21  receives a ticket for doing what she believes is

         22  necessary for a husband.

         23                 Another individual --

         24                 Reading from a letter -- "My car has

         25  been ticketed while I was bringing groceries into
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          2  the house and picking up my 88 year old mother in

          3  front of her house."

          4                 That's another one from Brooklyn.

          5  Someone from Bensonhurst --

          6                 Reading from a letter -- "I was

          7  recently summoned in Bay Ridge.  The care is

          8  actually standing and had a licensed driver in the

          9  care.  The officer failed to look in the car, and

         10  hastily wrote an incomplete ticket before he checked

         11  inside the care.  I contested the summons, but PVV

         12  said the ticket was valid and now I am appealing.  I

         13  was standing in the first place to deposit a

         14  prescription at PharmaCon for a life- critical

         15  medication".

         16                 The City of New York gave that person

         17  a ticket.

         18                 One other --

         19                 Reading from a letter -- "The other

         20  day, I was waiting for a spot.  I got into an

         21  argument with an Agent who was about to write me,

         22  but she decided to yell back.  Anyway, in the time

         23  of the argument, the person pulled out.  He was

         24  waiting to get into a parking spot and I went to

         25  pull in".
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          2                 She actually exercised discretion.

          3  She walked away without ticketing.

          4                 But do you see what's happening here?

          5    Even those who are waiting for a parking spot to

          6  become open as they're pulling out, Agents are

          7  pulling up behind them and giving them tickets for

          8  what they call double parking, and is not double

          9  parking, it's standing waiting for a car to pull out

         10  of a valid spot.  Do you understand what's happening

         11  on the streets of New York?

         12                 MS. PETITO: I understand that those

         13  are unfortunate anecdotes that have come to your

         14  attention.  However, if the summons is legitimately

         15  given, it needs to be given.  There is an

         16  adjudicative process that people can avail

         17  themselves of to adjudicate those summonses, and we

         18  welcome them to do that.

         19                 But the Traffic Agent is the person

         20  on the scene who, if there is a violation in their

         21  presence, issues the summons. That is their role.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: One more from

         23  Staten Island --

         24                 Reading from a letter, from New

         25  Brighton in Staten Island -- "Had a law had been in
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          2  effect, I would not have recently received a summons

          3  while unloading groceries in front of my home. Trunk

          4  open, lights flashing and quick unloading of grocery

          5  bags meant nothing to the courtesy, professionalism,

          6  and respect brigade".  That's Ray Reber (phonetic)

          7  from Staten Island.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

          9  Gentile, are there questions?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman.

         11    It is astounding to me.  Now, I have a question in

         12  regard to the fact that -- do you understand that

         13  you used the argument that when you talk about

         14  meters, that you are saying that you have to turn

         15  the meters over.  And I believe that our gentleman

         16  from the DOT said this.  You have to turn the meters

         17  over because you have to help small businesses, you

         18  have to turn the meters over.

         19                 You have a recognition and

         20  appreciation for helping small businesses.  But, you

         21  show none of the same consideration when small

         22  business complain to us that if somebody stops for

         23  us for five, two minutes to drop off something at

         24  the store or to pick up something at the store, they

         25  get a $115 dollar ticket.
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          2                 You seem to show no concern for small

          3  businesses in that regard.

          4                 MS. PETITO: May I respond?  We

          5  understand the frustration that someone who is

          6  illegally, double parked for two minutes or five

          7  minutes might feel when they receive a summons. But

          8  we are also concerned about keeping that road clear

          9  so that ambulances, fire trucks, and police cars can

         10  get through without impediment.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And I said

         12  this at the beginning, I don't think you'll get an

         13  argument from any of us here about that issue.  But

         14  it goes beyond that issue.  It goes beyond Mr.

         15  Chairman, I will end with this, I think it goes

         16  beyond the fact that without any discretion given to

         17  these Agents, the CPR that they talk about is not

         18  exercised on the street, because you cannot exercise

         19  CPR when you have an emphasis on productivity in

         20  meeting a ticket quota.

         21                 It hurts the hard- working, tax-

         22  paying, law- abiding New Yorkers and I think it's

         23  appropriate that this Council take up their mantle.

         24                 Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council
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          2  Member Gentile.

          3                 We've been joined by Council Member

          4  Koppell, from the Bronx.  And we're going to hear

          5  questions from Council Member Gonzalez.

          6                 Let me state at this point, that it's

          7  not necessarily wise to give a great deal of

          8  discretion, and I personally would think that it's

          9  not a good idea to give the Traffic Enforcement

         10  Agents too much discretion.  They do what they're

         11  told, they've been trained to do that, and I don't

         12  see any problem with the way that the Agents are

         13  trained.  What I see is a potential for the

         14  Department to place a burden on New Yorkers, through

         15  the form of perhaps a hidden tax, because we are

         16  certainly, as a City, expecting a great deal of

         17  revenue from these summonses that are written by

         18  these Traffic Enforcement Agents.  And when the

         19  Agents are not meeting their expectation, or their

         20  baseline, or their average, then some action is

         21  taken that is not necessarily a desirable action on

         22  the part of the Enforcement Agents.

         23                 So, that is clearly an issue that we

         24  need to deal with.  I think it's an issue that the

         25  City needs to be up front with all the residents and
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          2  citizens of this great City.  And so, we will

          3  continue to pursue that.

          4                 Council Member Gonzalez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Thank you

          6  Chair.  Good morning Director, and everyone here

          7  today.

          8                 I just have a question.  Probably, if

          9  it's already been answered to some extent.  It's

         10  about deployment.  I'd like to know, in District 38,

         11  for example, how many Traffic Agents are deployed to

         12  that district?  And if we could get numbers later I

         13  will gladly sit with your office in respect to what

         14  my complaints, and what my issues are, rather than

         15  air them here.

         16                 But there are situations that I'd

         17  like to know how many is it Brooklyn South, that

         18  deploys them, the Traffic Agents?            MR.

         19  VALLES: What we call Brooklyn South -- we're

         20  separate from police precincts, but we use the same

         21  concept   as police precincts.  Our Brooklyn South

         22  office is located at Church and Ralph.  And all the

         23  Agents from Brooklyn South are deployed from that

         24  particular command.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay.  And
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          2  if I wanted numbers from the precinct themselves, I

          3  would just get it from them.  Because you said

          4  before that officers also ticket.  It's not just

          5  Traffic Agents.

          6                 MS. PETITO: That's right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: So there are

          8  separate numbers.

          9                 MS. PETITO: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: And separate

         11  deployment?

         12                 MS. PETITO: I mean, they're

         13  coordinated, but yes, they come from separate

         14  commands.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay.  So

         16  I'd like that information.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         18  Member Gonzalez.

         19                 Questions from Council Member Reyna,

         20  and then Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Good morning.

         22                 Director Valles, I wanted to just

         23  narrow the line of questioning here.  As far as laws

         24  and regulations enforced by your Department, there

         25  was a recent, not too long ago, hearing on the truck
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          2  traffic enforcement.

          3                 As you know, in North Brooklyn, we

          4  have a serious problem with trucks violating truck

          5  routes.  And a huge emphasis on behalf of a change

          6  in law, as far as the State is concerned, to

          7  increase penalties due to the violation, as well as

          8  a budget increase from last year's numbers to this

          9  year's numbers dedicated for new hires.  And in that

         10  hearing, we explored what the problem was as far as

         11  your tier system.  You know, you have a new hire,

         12  but that didn't necessarily address our intention of

         13  that allocated budget to target truck traffic

         14  violations.

         15                 And so since then, I understand that

         16  Tier One is not the appropriate tier that would

         17  address the truck traffic violations, but rather

         18  Tier Three and Four, correct me if I'm wrong.

         19                 MR. VALLES: Just the Fours.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Just the Fours.

         21    So, I'd like to find out, because you did mention

         22  that you evaluate your numbers as far as deployment

         23  of Agents according to changes in the law and

         24  regulations.  This is a recent change in law.  And

         25  how are you addressing since that change in law to
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          2  increase the number of Agents addressing that

          3  particular traffic violation?

          4                 MR. VALLES: Well, truck enforcement

          5  is enforced by several agencies.  The Police

          6  Department does it.  New York State DOT does it.

          7  And New York State Conservation, Environmental

          8  Conservation also enforces truck enforcement.

          9                 Presently, in the 90, and the 94

         10  where it's pretty much where we do most enforcement,

         11  we do joint efforts with the New York State DOT on

         12  truck enforcement.

         13                 We also have a precinct task force.

         14  Each patrol borough has a task force of police

         15  officers that do truck enforcement.  And, as well as

         16  we have police officers in the Traffic Control

         17  Division that does strictly truck enforcement as

         18  well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so just to

         20  take that particular category as far as enforcement

         21  is concerned, within the law, the numbers that have

         22  been, the aggregate numbers of tickets to the law

         23  being violated by truck drivers off routes, has it

         24  increased since last year to this year, considering

         25  that there has been --
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          2                 MS. PETITO: I believe it has, but

          3  we'll have to get back to you on that.  But I

          4  believe it has.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And that is not

          6  due to an increase in Agents, because my

          7  understanding is that from Tier One, we have not

          8  seen any of those new hires enter Tier Four.

          9                 MS. PETITO: No.  The Traffic

         10  Enforcement Agents who were hired were all hired at

         11  Level One, but, because it's a promotional process,

         12  it takes time for Level Ones to be promoted to Level

         13  Two, and then to be promoted to either Level Three

         14  or Level Four.

         15                 And also, because those higher levels

         16  are peace officers, we want to ensure that the

         17  people who are filling those positions, are

         18  experienced and have gone through a lot of training

         19  and a lot of supervision within the Department.

         20  That's why they're not hired at Level Four, they're

         21  hired at Level One and then they move up in the

         22  process.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.

         24  And just to understand, what emphasis have we seen

         25  any further interest from Levels Two and Three to
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          2  get promoted into Level Four, with the proper time,

          3  training and everything that you've just mentioned

          4  to secure that this Agent being promoted is being

          5  promoted for the right reasons?

          6                 MS. PETITO: We have significant

          7  interest in people wanting to become Level Four

          8  Agents.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: How soon will

         10  we see those Agents out at Level Four, to start

         11  enforcing the truck traffic laws that has changed in

         12  recent years at the State level as well as the City

         13  Council trying to deal with the truck traffic

         14  increasing complaints in residential areas?

         15                 MS. PETITO: Well, they're out there

         16  now.  There are already over 200 Level Fours, is

         17  that correct?  Over 200 Level Four Agents out there

         18  now, doing truck enforcement among other duties. And

         19  supplemented by, as Director Valles said, from

         20  patrol personnel from the borough task force and

         21  other uniformed personnel within the Traffic Control

         22  Division.  So they are out there now.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And this is the

         24  same number of Agents that have been out there since

         25  let's say, 2001 it's my understanding.
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          2                 MS. PETITO: I believe the Level Four

          3  numbers are consistent.

          4                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

          5                 MS. PETITO: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so it goes

          7  back to what I was mentioning before.  The emphasis

          8  that the City Council allocated as far as an

          9  increase in your budget to hire was directly to

         10  increase the 200 number, as opposed to a Level One

         11  Agent factor.            And so, you're committed to

         12  seeing a promotion in Level Four when the time is

         13  right for Levels Two and Three with the proper

         14  training to move into Level Four, being promoted.

         15  How soon will we see those promotions, so that we

         16  can start increasing those 200 numbers?

         17                 MS. PETITO: I'm not intimately

         18  familiar with the budget process, but I don't

         19  believe there was an allocation for Level Four

         20  increase.  I believe that the increase was for Level

         21  One, for hiring, and that was for about 300 people

         22  last year.

         23                 So those people will certainly filter

         24  up through the system, but they will most likely

         25  replace Level Fours who leave or become promoted to
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          2  supervisory positions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I have to

          4  respectfully disagree.  Our intention in the City

          5  Council, I know, because this was targeted for the

          6  complimentation of the change in State law, to be

          7  able to address the truck traffic issue that's

          8  growing extensively in the City of New York,

          9  violating the law through residential neighborhoods,

         10  where a serious safety issue is increasing.

         11                 And so, the intention was, and it was

         12  not our knowledge that you couldn't just hire at

         13  Level Four with new money, but you had to see a

         14  promotion occur within the Department.

         15                 And so, therefore, it perhaps was not

         16  stated, but the intention was there to hire Level

         17  Four to address truck traffic issues that are just

         18  extensively growing in the City of New York.       So

         19  , I continue to ask, and reinforce your commitment

         20  is one that I value, and you've just stated, but

         21  when will we see those Level Fours grow from 200 to

         22  the 300, 400, 500s that we need in order to address

         23  the truck traffic issue in the City of New York?

         24                 MS. PETITO: That's certainly a budget

         25  issue beyond our purview here.  It might be being
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          2  discussed in the context of the budget negotiations

          3  now, but we're not privy to that information.

          4                 People who are hired now, at Level

          5  One will take some years to be able to get the

          6  opportunity to become Level Four.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right, and then

          8  what about Level Two and Three?

          9                 MS. PETITO: Well, they would go

         10  through Level Two. They are hired at Level One, they

         11  would take, I would assume, at least a year past

         12  their probationary period, to be promoted to Level

         13  Two.  And then, I would assume, another year at

         14  least, to be promoted from Level Two to either into

         15  Level Three or Level Four.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But you have

         17  qualified candidates for Level Four within Level

         18  Three?

         19                 MR. VALLES: Yes.

         20                 MS. PETITO: Well, within Level Two.

         21  They go from Two to either Three or Four.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So from Level

         23  Two, we have valid candidates that can be promoted.

         24                 MS. PETITO: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And is it fair
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          2  to say that we can see those promotions within the

          3  next six months?

          4                 MS. PETITO: We don't know the answer

          5  to that. Again, I believe it's a budget issue.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

          7  Member Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Chairman Liu,

          9  if I can just address the concern that last year we

         10  allocated funding specifically to address the truck

         11  traffic issue.  This is not the first time we've

         12  mentioned this.  We had a hearing concerning this.

         13  Level One, we understand what was hired.  But there

         14  was an intention there to see promotions from Level

         15  Twos into Level Four to address the truck traffic

         16  issues that we have been so vividly and --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         18                 Earlier this year, we did have a

         19  hearing on the long delayed redesignation of truck

         20  routes and enforcement in the City by the DOT.  And

         21  DOT has pledged that even though they are going to

         22  be a year- and- a- half late, that they will have it

         23  done by the end of this year, December, 2005.

         24                 So, we have a couple of bills pending

         25  related to stricter enforcement of truck routes and
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          2  truck traffic.  And that includes one bill that

          3  talks about increasing the number of personnel,

          4  explicitly increasing the number of personnel for

          5  category where the officers are empowered to enforce

          6  against illegal truck traffic.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And this

          8  Committee is being told now that that is a budget

          9  issue rather than a promotion issue. So, I just want

         10  to be able to highlight that we addressed it in the

         11  budget last year.  We weren't aware that there were

         12  levels of Agents that would impede us from having

         13  that money dedicated to a Level Four.  And so, I'd

         14  like to see a commitment that at the end of this

         15  year, we're going to see an increase in Level Fours,

         16  to address truck traffic issues.

         17                 And this hearing has been dedicated

         18  to changes in law, and how that affects enforcement

         19  and outcome results.  There needs to be outcome

         20  results at that level, and I expect to see that

         21  sometime soon, in the near future.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Point is well taken.

         23    Thank you.

         24                 And Council Member Martinez has

         25  questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

          3  Mr. Chair. Welcome Director.  Good seeing you.

          4                 I just want to go back to the issue

          5  brought up by Council Member Gentile in terms of the

          6  CPR.  And it has to do with the question of

          7  deployment and procedures.  What we see in our

          8  communities, it's not what it's laid out or what you

          9  describe in terms of the conduct of many of the

         10  Agents.

         11                 I know that in my community, where we

         12  see the Agents, we think of predators.  We think of

         13  a pack of wild wolf, because when they come, they

         14  come in packs.  And it's scary.  And the tension

         15  that you see in the community, and the residents,

         16  it's just saddening.  Because when we see an Agent,

         17  we automatically see sort of like an enemy of the

         18  community.

         19                 And the issue of CPR is a serious

         20  issue in terms of how do we address the courtesy,

         21  professionalism, and respect of those particular

         22  communities.  And it's not an issue of attacking a

         23  particular agency, it's an issue that needs to be

         24  addressed in terms of procedure, in terms of

         25  behavior, in terms of conduct of these Agents.
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          2                 And you know, I for one, want to

          3  know, does the agency have sort of like mapped out,

          4  by communities, how many summonses are issued by

          5  communities, and how many agents by communities?  Do

          6  you have that available?

          7                 MR. VALLES: No, we don't have that

          8  available.

          9                 My understanding is that the

         10  Department of Finance, I don't know if they do now,

         11  but they did have a tracking system by --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I want to

         13  interrupt you. Because I'm not talking about finance

         14  now.  What I'm talking about is your agency telling

         15  me how many agents are in my community as opposed,

         16  if I want to look at the Upper West Side, or if I

         17  want to look the Lower East Side.  I'm talking about

         18  Manhattan, particularly, or if I want to look at

         19  West or East Harlem, I want to know how many Agents

         20  you have, by community.  And then, I will ask when I

         21  see those numbers, why?

         22                 MR. VALLES: We'll have to get back to

         23  you on that. But right now, I don't believe we ever

         24  deploy Agents in packs, into any community.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay, but
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          2  when I say "packs", for example, I can tell you that

          3  at a certain time, and I will invite you to come,

          4  and we will stand in the corner in front of my

          5  district office on 174th Street and St. Nick, and

          6  I'll say, around 1 o'clock, I would invite you to

          7  come to my office and we will come to the corner.

          8  And you will see a pack of blue cabs, excuse me,

          9  white cabs coming down the block on St. Nick.  And

         10  you will see people running towards their cars.  On

         11  both sides of the streets.

         12                 And then the tension, and I know that

         13  you have in your report, recently in my community,

         14  there were confrontations between your Agents and

         15  residents of my district.  And there's the tension

         16  that is being built when the Agents are around.

         17  Because of the issue again, of CPR.  And

         18  unfortunately, in many of the Agents, reflect the

         19  same constituents of my district.

         20                 However, there is a barrier there

         21  that there is no communication because of the lack

         22  of discretion that the Agents seem not to have.  And

         23  that's building a lot of tension.  And I'm saying

         24  it, I'm concerned not only for the safety of your

         25  Agent that have to do their job, but also of the
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          2  residents.  And I think that there's something

          3  missing from the training and the CPR that's so much

          4  the Department promotes, because there is a lot of

          5  tension.

          6                 So when I ask about deployment, I ask

          7  how are these Agents deployed to communities.  Are

          8  they deployed by groups?  Is that a procedure that

          9  you have four on one sidewalk and four on the other

         10  side?  And they target a particular street?  Do they

         11  have the -- when I have a driver, for example, wants

         12  to explain, there is no time to explain.  And now,

         13  they call them "fast guns" because now you have the

         14  scanners.  So now, they get the scanner, they put it

         15  on the windshield, and that's it, you have a

         16  summons.

         17                 And there is a lot, a lot of tension.

         18    I know that you have a report of one of your

         19  Agents that they spilled oil on him.  Oil on him in

         20  my district.  That I had to intervene and work with

         21  the precinct and work to find out what was

         22  happening.  And I'll go over numerous of cases, and

         23  I'm not talking about cases of individuals getting a

         24  summons because they were in a hurry.  I'm talking

         25  about confrontations between your Agent and
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          2  residents of a particular community.

          3                 And it is important for us to know,

          4  not how much money is being collected.  How many

          5  agents per communities or districts are deployed?  I

          6  am extremely interested in that.

          7                 And the same issue in terms of

          8  deployment. What is the process of deployment?  And

          9  again, Director, I know that you've been available,

         10  and when my office has called with particular

         11  issues, I want to thank you for that.  But it is a

         12  serious situation that we have that could get ugly

         13  between community and Agents in terms of the

         14  confrontations that we see in our communities.

         15                 There's something missing in the CPR,

         16  and I will welcome the opportunity to work with you,

         17  I again, will bring you up to my district.  We could

         18  walk, obviously don't wear a uniform, we could walk

         19  the street and you'll see what we're talking about.

         20                 So, this is a serious concern that we

         21  have, and again, I'm interested in the numbers.  Not

         22  how much money being generated, in terms of

         23  deployment per community.  And the same is true with

         24  procedures.

         25                 Thank you Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

          3  Member Martinez.

          4                 I want to thank Director Valles, and

          5  Ms. Petito, and the DOT and the NYPD for having all

          6  of these representatives here, and helping us sort

          7  through this issue.  It is one that raises a great

          8  deal of emotion of all different sorts.  And so we

          9  appreciate your being here with us.  But this is an

         10  issue that is obviously very important on the minds

         11  of New Yorkers, and it is in the interest of good

         12  government that we try to clarify all of these

         13  issues.  And at the end of the day, we may agree or

         14  not agree on how things are characterized, but,

         15  nonetheless, it is incumbent upon us to shed more

         16  light on exactly what is happening with these

         17  procedures.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 Next, we do have a number of people

         20  to testify on this issue, but at this time we also

         21  have the Commissioner of the Taxi and Limousine

         22  Commission here to testify on a bill immediately

         23  after which I will call for a vote of the Committee.

         24    And then we will return to the issue of

         25  enforcement of traffic regulations.
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          2                 We're delighted to be joined by

          3  Commissioner Daus, the Chairperson of the Taxi and

          4  Limousine Commission. Commissioner, welcome.  Thanks

          5  for your patience.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning.  No

          7  problem.

          8                 Good morning Chairman Liu, Council

          9  Members of the Transportation Committee.  My name is

         10  Matt Daus, I am the Commissioner and Chair of the

         11  New York City Taxi and Limousine Commission.  To my

         12  right, is our First Deputy Commissioner Andrew

         13  Salkin.  To my left is our Assistant Commissioner

         14  for Safety and Emissions, Peter Shankman.

         15                 I'd like to thank you for the

         16  opportunity to appear before you again.  This time,

         17  to provide testimony relating to Into. No. 664.

         18                 Today, I will provide an update on

         19  the TLC's efforts regarding alternative fuel

         20  taxicabs since my last appearance before this

         21  Committee just over a week ago.

         22                 As I discussed during my earlier

         23  testimony, the TLC's Board of Commissioners held a

         24  public meeting last Monday, at which Council  Member

         25  Yassky was gracious enough to attend and
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          2  participate.  At that hearing, the Commissioners

          3  engaged in a vigorous discussion about the use of

          4  alternative fuel vehicles as medallion taxicabs and

          5  the potential impact upon passenger comfort. Council

          6  Member Yassky delivered a presentation regarding

          7  clean- fuel taxicabs, and the agency's staff

          8  provided some initial results of its research on

          9  alternative fuel vehicles.

         10                 The Commission's discussion noted the

         11  importance of passenger needs.  Each vehicle the TLC

         12  approves as a cab is on the road for at least three

         13  to five years, providing on average, 20,000

         14  passenger rides annually.  We take this

         15  responsibility very seriously, and want to ensure

         16  that the vehicles are reliable, comfortable, and

         17  that they can stand up to the test of being a New

         18  York City taxicab.

         19                 Just a few years ago, the TLC, the

         20  taxi industry, and vehicle manufacturers were able

         21  to work together to address two pressing needs with

         22  two very different outcomes.  The first was cleaner

         23  taxicabs by utilizing Compressed Natural Gas, also

         24  known as CNG technology.  While I feel the CNG

         25  movement was well intentioned, as we discussed at
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          2  the last hearing, the effort within the taxi

          3  industry, despite significant financial commitment,

          4  was unable to overcome logistical and infrastructure

          5  needs at the time, and the program was discontinued.

          6

          7                 The second program focused on the

          8  pressing issue of passenger comfort, which has had a

          9  more successful outcome.  It took some time, and

         10  lots of hard work on all sides, but in the end, the

         11  product that was delivered, the Stretch Crown

         12  Victoria, was a much better vehicle for everyone.

         13                 Today, the taxi industry is once

         14  again faced with a similar challenge to improve its

         15  vehicles.  There is a compelling need for today's

         16  vehicles -- not just taxicabs, but all vehicles --

         17  to be cleaner and more fuel- efficient.  As we did

         18  five years ago, we are ready to partner with

         19  everyone who can help: The Council, environmental

         20  advocacy groups, the taxi industry, vehicles

         21  manufacturers, and of course, passengers, to reach

         22  that goal.

         23                 Too often, the debate on this issue

         24  has seemed to boil down to either more passenger

         25  space versus cleaner vehicles. It does not have to
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          2  be an either/or proposition.  We can push for both,

          3  and I believe that in time, perhaps as soon as

          4  vehicle model year 2007, there will be vehicles

          5  offered that are both clean- air fueled and also

          6  enough passenger leg room to have a comfortable

          7  vehicles.

          8                 At the conclusion of our Commission

          9  meeting on the 20th, we asked TLC staff to recommend

         10  a program and authorizing rules to allow the use of

         11  alternative- fuel vehicles as taxicabs. In effect,

         12  we conveyed, of course, the discussions that we had

         13  with all of you to the Board of Commissioners.  They

         14  were very pleased that we had such a spirited

         15  discussion here as well.

         16                 It is our goal to place hybrid

         17  vehicles on the road as taxicabs by this Fall.  Our

         18  basic timeline is as follows:

         19                 At our July meeting of our Board of

         20  Commissioners, which is, at this point tentatively

         21  scheduled for July 26th, the staff will present the

         22  propose program along with draft authorizing rules.

         23  And the Commission will begin to accept public

         24  comment and testimony on those rules.

         25                 In accordance with the rule- making
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          2  process under CAPA, which is the City Administrative

          3  Procedure Act, at the following Commission meeting,

          4  after July, which depending on the schedules of our

          5  Commissioners could be held in late August or early

          6  September, I will ask our Board to consider voting

          7  on these proposed rules.

          8                 A public hearing will be scheduled to

          9  take place at this meeting, and prior to any vote.

         10                 If these rules are approved, vehicles

         11  could be on the road as soon as 30 days thereafter.

         12                 Our staff has already begun working

         13  on the program and rules.  They have also made

         14  initial contacts to various constituencies including

         15  some of the groups represented here today as well as

         16  several vehicle manufacturers including Toyota,

         17  Ford, and General Motors.

         18                 The program we will recommend to the

         19  Board of Commissioners in July will include vehicle

         20  specifications that would allow for one or more of

         21  the alternative- fuel vehicles currently on the

         22  market to be used as taxicabs.  The vehicles would

         23  be subject to regular inspections, and perhaps

         24  additional inspections beyond the current three

         25  times per year requirement for all cabs.
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          2                 Driver and passenger satisfaction

          3  surveys as well as surveys of those who maintain

          4  such vehicles could also be included in the program

          5  to help evaluate their success.

          6                 We are exploring ways in which the

          7  program could be targeted towards replacing the

          8  oldest and the smallest vehicles in our fleet --

          9  those already scheduled for retirement within the

         10  next few months.  For example, the test could be

         11  limited to those vehicles who are retiring non-

         12  Stretch Crown Victorias that don't have the

         13  additional six inches of leg room.

         14                 Intro. No. 664 would require the TLC

         15  to approve a hybrid vehicle and make it available

         16  for any of the nearly 13,000 medallion cabs within

         17  90 days.  We believe that a program targeted at the

         18  oldest and smallest vehicles would better insure

         19  that we minimize the impact on passenger comfort,

         20  while also realizing environmental benefits.

         21                 As we start this program, we should

         22  focus on getting older Crown Victorias with only

         23  39.6 inches of legroom in the rear, replaced with

         24  alternative- fuel vehicles rather than giving up on

         25  the hard- fought gains of passenger comfort that we
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          2  achieved in the newer Stretch Crown Victorias which

          3  have 45.6 inches of rear passenger legroom.  This

          4  incentive to replace the oldest vehicles in the taxi

          5  fleet with new and cleaner vehicles would apply to

          6  almost 2,000 vehicles scheduled for retirement

          7  during the upcoming fiscal year.

          8                 The program I have outlined today

          9  would place clean fuel taxicabs on the road, and

         10  allow for the careful evaluation of new vehicles

         11  that we feel the riding public deserves.  The TLC

         12  sees this program as the first step in an ongoing

         13  process to continually improve the cab.

         14                 In sum, I must oppose the enactment

         15  of Intro. No. 664 as currently drafted, only as to

         16  the manner of implementation. I am ready to support

         17  this bill if the second and third sentences of

         18  proposed Section 19- 533 of the Administrative Code

         19  are deleted. These modifications would ensure the

         20  Commission has the flexibility to define

         21  alternative- fuel vehicles as technology continues

         22  to develop in this area as well as to set forth the

         23  manner of implementation, which I believe should be

         24  done by the Commission.

         25                 Thank you and I'd be happy to answer
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          2  any question you may have on this legislation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  And

          4  we'll entertain any questions from Council Members,

          5  Committee Members.

          6                 I'll just say that Commissioner Daus,

          7  in general, we don't disagree with any of your

          8  points.  I think your points are very strong points,

          9  and very valid in general.  But I think the main

         10  difference that we have is that we, meaning the

         11  Council and the Administration came to a very clear

         12  agreement.  It was actually a pretty minimal

         13  agreement of having a very small number of new

         14  medallions issued that would be required to be

         15  affixed to clean- air vehicles.

         16                 And that was in the middle of 2003

         17  that we reached that agreement.  It is now two years

         18  later, and now we're hearing that we could have some

         19  of these clean- air vehicles under the TLC's

         20  timeframe as early as the 2007 model year, which, I

         21  guess would actually be in the Fall of 2006.  That's

         22  just my guess, but the 2007 model year.

         23                 And what we're saying, and what we're

         24  doing through this bill, Intro. No. 664 is that

         25  we're saying that the timeframe needs to be greatly
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          2  enhanced. Speeded up.  This is not the first time

          3  that we've brought this issue to the TLC's

          4  attention.  The hearing that we had just over a week

          5  ago is not the first time we've brought this up.  In

          6  fact, we brought this up regularly over the last

          7  nearly one year, every time we've had a hearing.

          8                 And so, it is our intent to go ahead

          9  and pass this bill, Intro. No. 664, based on what

         10  you've described as the plan that the TLC is

         11  embarking on beginning next month.  We believe that

         12  our legislation does accommodate the kind of

         13  timeframe that you looked for. Originally, we had a

         14  piece of legislation that would have called for a

         15  30- day approval.  Based on your testimony, we agree

         16  with you that that was a little bit unrealistic,

         17  But, the 90- day period is fully realistic, and it

         18  certainly will allow you to go ahead and do what

         19  you're planning to do.

         20                 So, at this time, we'll entertain

         21  questions from Committee Members, and we have

         22  questions from Council Member Sears.

         23                 Council Member Sears passes.

         24                 At this time, we will call for a vote

         25  on Intro. No. 664.  It's a pretty simple piece of
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          2  legislation that finally requires the TLC to approve

          3  a hybrid electric vehicle within 90 days of

          4  enactment of this bill.  And I recommend a "yes"

          5  vote on this bill  I probably sponsored this bill

          6  along with Council Member, Speaker Gifford Miller

          7  and several other Members.

          8                 Will the Clerk please call the roll.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: May I explain

         15  my vote Mr. Chair?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just to say

         18  that you know, necessity is the mother of invention.

         19    And as I hear this morning on the news that oil is

         20  up to $60 dollars a barrel, I think that the time is

         21  now. I would suggest that we're in something of a

         22  state of emergency in terms of energy with the cost

         23  of fuel at this level.

         24                 Airlines are threatening to go out of

         25  business, people who rely on their automobiles for
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          2  their livelihood are in serious trouble, and maybe

          3  it's not such a bad thing in the end. Because it's

          4  going to force us to do things that we should have

          5  done before.   This is one of those things.  Thank

          6  you for allowing me to speak, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 I vote aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

          9  Member.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         16  explain my vote, please.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Alright.

         19  Commissioner Daus, I understand exactly, because

         20  I've heard things today that I did not hear when we

         21  had the hearing a few weeks ago.

         22                 I understand that it affects those

         23  new medallions, and I think under those

         24  circumstances, I'm going to vote "yes".  I had some

         25  reservations, and as it all comes clearer, I vote
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          2   "aye" for this, and I think that you will be able

          3  to meet what we're talking about because it's not

          4  affecting the entire industry.

          5                 MR. DAUS: Well, I certainly

          6  appreciate the responsiveness of the Council to our

          7  prior comments on the legislation, Mr. Chairman.

          8  Oh, I'm sorry.  Am I out of order?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If we could just

         10  finish the vote.

         11                 MR. DAUS: I apologize.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lanza.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Addabbo

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I vote Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of nine in

         20  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         21  abstentions, the intro is adopted.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  At this

         23  time I'd also like to ask Committee Members to

         24  consider Resolution No. 973, calling upon the

         25  Metropolitan Transportation Authority to maintain
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          2  weekend express service from Brooklyn to Midtown

          3  Manhattan beyond the scheduled June 30, 2005

          4  termination date.  I'd like to offer the floor to

          5  Council Member Gentile, the prime sponsor of this

          6  Resolution.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 On May 18th of this year, the Transit

         10  Authority announced that, as it has in past years,

         11  that it would terminate the TA's bus service on the

         12  Brooklyn to Manhattan X27 and X298 Express lines.

         13  These lines serve Bensonhurst and Bay Ridge. And the

         14  termination of their operation was to be yesterday,

         15  Sunday, June 26th, even though the Resolution does

         16  say the 30th, they revised that to June 26th.

         17                 However, as in past years, the

         18  operation of the X27 and X28 on weekends was saved

         19  recently as a result of the involvement of local

         20  elected officials, Speaker Gifford Miller, and Mayor

         21  Bloomberg.  While the service has been maintained

         22  for another 12 months, the funding is coming from

         23  outside the Transit Authority budget.  Meaning that

         24  the TA is still of the position that it will not run

         25  the service on its own, and instead will rely on
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          2  full funding from an outside source.

          3                 In the past two years, that source

          4  was the State. And in this current instance, a

          5  combination of funding from the State and City.

          6  Since Speaker Miller and I have both argued that the

          7  Transit Authority or some MTA entity take the

          8  responsibility of including these express line in

          9  their operation, this Resolution still has value in

         10  going forward.  That is, because the Resolution

         11  calls on the Transit Authority to fulfill it's

         12  responsibility to these Brooklyn residents by

         13  maintaining the X27, the X28 weekend service in

         14  their budget.

         15                 The dubious reasons given by the

         16  Transit officials as to why this service is on the

         17  chopping block each year is interesting.  They say

         18  that these buses represent a duplication of subway

         19  service, and therefore, are not needed.  Nothing

         20  could be further from the truth.  The X27, the X28,

         21  do not duplicate any service.

         22                 It is true that there are two subway

         23  lines that serve this part of Brooklyn, but not a

         24  single subway station in the district has an

         25  elevator or an escalator.  In fact, both the R train
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          2  and the D trains require riders to navigate two or

          3  three flights of stairs before reaching the trains.

          4  A burden that is simply impossible for many.

          5                 Imagine how difficult it is for an

          6  elderly person, or impossible for a disabled person

          7  to climb up and down these stairs or navigate in a

          8  wheelchair.  Tell the elderly or disabled that

          9  express buses duplicate subway service.

         10                 Another excuse the TA gives for

         11  cutting the weekend express service was that it was

         12  there to service the public during the Manhattan

         13  Bridge reconstruction.  This logic is also flawed.

         14  If the TA provided this service to compensate for

         15  the Manhattan Bridge construction, why wasn't it in

         16  effect in 1987 when the construction began?  Why did

         17  it take 15 years for the TA to realize that the

         18  subway lines were not adequate?

         19                 So, it's the human elements of this

         20  issue are obvious, and the MTA's logic has been far

         21  from convincing. Instead, the elderly and disabled

         22  and those who work on weekend each year, face the

         23  loss of service that can reliably, quickly, and

         24  safely get them to and from Manhattan.

         25                 The funding needed to maintain this
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          2  weekend service is just over $1 million dollars per

          3  year.  Which is minuscule when compared to the fact

          4  that recently, the MTA dedicated $231 million

          5  dollars toward replacing Metro North's fleet of

          6  commuter trains.

          7                 Moreover, we Brooklynites are also

          8  aware that the MTA's toll we pay across the

          9  Verrazano Bridge, a whopping nine dollar toll, that

         10  of that money collected from us, much of the revenue

         11  goes to subsidize commuter fares on the Long Island

         12  Railroad.  So, $231 million dollars for new cars on

         13  Metro North Line, and our toll money on the VZ

         14  Bridge helps to keep the fares down on the Long

         15  Island Railroad.

         16                 Money to Westchester, money to Long

         17  Island. And then, the TA has the gall to tell

         18  Brooklynites that there is no money to run weekend

         19  express service to Manhattan.  That it requires a

         20  handout to keep this service operating.  Please.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, at a time when our City

         22  is trying to promote Manhattan, secure it's

         23  prominence as a tourist attraction in the post 911

         24  world, any measure that would make it more difficult

         25  to visit Manhattan seems unsensical.
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          2                 Cutting the express bus service

          3  discourages New Yorkers themselves from visiting

          4  Manhattan, and is tantamount to a slap in the face.

          5  The message we seem to be hearing from the Transit

          6  Authority is "Welcome to New York, Brooklynites not

          7  included".

          8                 That is why, Mr. Chairman, I think

          9  this Resolution still needs to be passed, as a

         10  sentiment of the New York City Council as to the

         11  responsibility of the New York City Transit

         12  Authority, to Brooklyn riders.  And that is why I

         13  ask for our support and the support of the Members

         14  of this Committee.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         17  Member Gentile.

         18                 Will the Clerk please call the roll

         19  on Resolution 973.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lanza.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Permission to

         14  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I want to

         17  commend Council Member Gentile with respect to

         18  bringing forward this Resolution.

         19                 Let me add to the plight of the folks

         20  that you represent, those of Staten Island.  I can

         21  tell you from personal experience, the MTA has an

         22  absolute miserable track record with respect to

         23  meeting its responsibility and equitably providing

         24  mass transit to all the people of the City of New

         25  York.
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          2                 Three years ago, they gave me their

          3  word that they would begin construction of a third

          4  bus depot on Staten Island which has been their

          5  excuse for not providing bus service to thousands of

          6  thousands of commuters on Staten Island.  Three

          7  years later, they haven't begun to do a stick of

          8  construction.

          9                 Their word means nothing, and so, I

         10  feel your pain, and I gladly join you in supporting

         11  this Resolution.

         12                 I vote Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: I have a vote of nine

         14  in the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         15  abstentions.  Resolution is adopted.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         17  Members.

         18                 Clerk, please keep the roll open on

         19  both of these items, so that we have other Council

         20  Members who may be joining us, so that they will

         21  have the opportunity to vote.

         22                 I want to thank the Committee Members

         23  for their diligence in taking this vote, and for

         24  joining us in this hearing.

         25                 We still have a long way to go.
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          2                 I want to thank the Chairman of the

          3  Taxi and Limousine Commissioner for bearing with us

          4  for those few moments. And just to say, as we

          5  conclude this portion of the hearing, we certainly

          6  look forward to working with the Taxi and Limousine

          7  Commission and the Administration on a far longer-

          8  term solution. And if that means that we can have a

          9  vehicle by the model year 2007 that meets all of the

         10  current specifications with regard to space and

         11  other requirements, as well as clean- air

         12  requirements, that is certainly something that we

         13  would encourage you to do as quickly as possible,

         14  and we would support your efforts in doing that.

         15                 But in the interim, we just need to

         16  get those medallions out there so that the taxicabs

         17  can get out there using clean- air vehicles.

         18                 I apologize.  We are joined now by

         19  Council Member David Yassky, who has been an

         20  important voice in this issue, and I'd like to offer

         21  him the floor for a few more minutes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you

         23  Chair.  I was, as you know, here much of the

         24  morning, but I was shuttling back and forth between

         25  two hearings.  So I apologize I missed your vote.
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          2                 I just wanted to first of all, thank

          3  Chair Daus for participating.  And I know I just

          4  read your statement, I understand the concerns.  We

          5  can agree to disagree maybe on some things, but

          6  mostly agree on what the goal is, and continue to

          7  work together towards that goal.

          8                 Chair Liu, I just want to thank you

          9  and the Committee Members for your support of this

         10  initiative.  I do believe that three, four, I was

         11  going to say ten, but really three, four years from

         12  now people will look back and see this as a very

         13  important turning point, not just for the taxis, but

         14  really for New York City's environmental health.

         15  And so I think you've taken a very important step

         16  today.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         18  Member Yassky.

         19                 Commissioner, you have wanted to, I

         20  guess, comment on some of the --

         21                 MR. DAUS: I apologize for being out

         22  of order.  I thought I was responding to a question.

         23    But I would like to thank you again, Mr. Chairman,

         24  the Council, Council Member Yassky for accommodating

         25  the Administration and the TLC's viewpoint and
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          2  working out some of the logistical details of the

          3  legislation.

          4  We look forward to working with you.

          5                 I want, in particular, to thank David

          6  Yassky for coming to our Commission meeting.  It's

          7  not often that we get, at our Board meetings,

          8  Council Members and making presentations.  It was

          9  just good government all around.  And we thank you

         10  for your leadership in this area, and we look

         11  forward to working with you. We'll report back.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you

         13  Chairman Daus.  And I want to thank your colleagues

         14  as well.

         15                 MR. DAUS: So will I.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  We have

         17  many members of the public who wish to testify, and

         18  we are prepared to accept that testimony.  We have

         19  people, a number of people speaking on the traffic

         20  regulations and the Enforcement Agents.

         21                 We also have people testifying on

         22  Intro. No. 664, regarding electric hybrid taxicabs.

         23  And Resolution 973 concerning the express bus

         24  service from Brooklyn.

         25                 I would like to ask the people, there
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          2  are two people testifying briefly on Resolution 973.

          3    I would like to ask them to come to the witness

          4  table right now.  Peter Killen, and Albert, and Jane

          5  Kelly.  Peter Killen and Jane Kelly.

          6                 Thank you for joining us, and coming

          7  all the way here from Brooklyn.  I would ask you to

          8  keep your testimony succinct.  And please identify

          9  yourself for the record.

         10                 MR. KILLEN: My name is Peter Killen.

         11  I'm the Executive Director of the Bay Ridge Consumer

         12  Federation.  And at this time, I would like to speak

         13  concerning the express bus, the 27 and the 28

         14  leaving Bay Ridge, and going into Manhattan.

         15                 Bay Ridge is a natural occurring

         16  retirement community.  We have approximately I think

         17  it's 30 percent of our residents are senior

         18  citizens.  There is not way that our senior citizens

         19  can navigate the R line or the N train leaving

         20  Bensonhurst and Bay Ridge going into Manhattan.  And

         21  the only other way, without the express buses, is we

         22  stay home.  And most of us who are retired, use the

         23  facilities of Manhattan.  We go to the shows, we go

         24  to the movies, we go to the museums, we enjoy

         25  leaving our Bay Ridge, because we're coming back to
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          2  it.  And we do travel into Manhattan.  And the

          3  express buses are extremely, extremely, important to

          4  this community.

          5                 And so, Chairman Liu, I would like to

          6  thank you for allowing me to speak here, and

          7  Councilman Gentile, for pushing this issue with

          8  Speaker Miller, allowing the buses to continue to

          9  run. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Please

         11  proceed.

         12                 MS. KELLY: I am Jane Kelly.  And I

         13  represent the Bay Ridge Council on Aging and also

         14  the AARP 3630.

         15                 I have been using the express bus for

         16  a number of years, and when the weekend express bus

         17  was put into service, it has been wonderful for

         18  seniors.  As Peter has said, there are so many

         19  seniors in Bay Ridge, and in Bensonhurst too, who

         20  rely on this on the weekends.  It's the only way

         21  that we can get to Manhattan because we have no

         22  handicap- accessible subway stations.

         23                 Also, the service goes along Shore

         24  Road, which is five blocks from the subway.  So for

         25  people to get to the subway, would be difficult to
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          2  begin with.  And the accessibility to the subway is

          3  very difficult for us.  They mention the number of

          4  stairs up and down.  At a certain point in our

          5  lives, it's just too much.

          6                 The express bus, because it runs on

          7  time, and because it goes in the routes that are

          8  accessible to us, has been a boon.  I know, I use it

          9  to get to the theater, and I will say, a number of

         10  us have to get to hospitals.  Not only for our own

         11  appointments, but for visiting.  And as you know,

         12  weekend visits are important to people in hospitals.

         13    And I know, I've been to Sloan- Kettering a number

         14  of times and that's a wonderful way with very little

         15  walking.

         16                 If the express bus were discontinued,

         17  most of us would not get to Manhattan.

         18  Occasionally, we've had to take a taxicabs to get

         19  there, and obviously, for people on fixed incomes,

         20  it's much too expensive to use taxis.  So we really

         21  rely on the express bus, and hope that you will

         22  continue it.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, we have a

         25  question from Council Member Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Jane Kelly, Peter Killen.  I'm just

          4  curious.  This express service seems to be on the

          5  chopping block every year.  And the purpose of this

          6  Resolution is to put it back in the lap of the

          7  Transit Authority and tell them it's their

          8  responsibility.  What is your feeling -- how did the

          9  riding public feel every time every year we get into

         10  the situation of having this on the chopping block.

         11                 MS. KELLY: Yes.  It is frightening,

         12  you know, to feel that it's going to be discontinued

         13  at any time.  And last year, we got or petitions and

         14  people were so anxious to sign them that a couple of

         15  AARP meetings that I went to, we didn't have enough,

         16  we had to get extra petitions.

         17                 They really rely on it, and it's

         18  really hard to have to face this every year.  We

         19  think it should be on the schedule. The MTA should

         20  fund it, and certainly, with the profits that they

         21  get, as you mentioned, from the bridge, and so on,

         22  if they're going to subsidize Long Island Railroad

         23  and so on, they certainly should provide for the

         24  express bus.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Killen,
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          2  do you have any thoughts on that?

          3                 MR. KILLEN: The riding public along

          4  Shore Road, very gently, Mr. Asfazadour and myself

          5  went out and we had our petitions asking them to

          6  please sign to keep the buses going, and when the

          7  Council authorized the money, we went back out again

          8  and told them that the buses would be running for

          9  another year.  The responses we had from the people

         10  waiting for this express 27 was verbal, it was

         11  physical, we got more thumbs up.  I wish we got more

         12  thumbs up on everything we do in our community.  But

         13  it was a thumbs up job for what this Council is

         14  doing.  So thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And I think

         16  that just underscores the need for this service.

         17  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         19  Member Gentile, and we certainly want to

         20  congratulate you for all of your efforts on behalf

         21  of the communities that are affected by this express

         22  bus.

         23                 Thank you for coming to City Hall

         24  today.

         25                 We'll now resume the portion of the
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          2  hearing concerning the oversight over the

          3  regulation, the traffic regulation and their

          4  enforcement by the Traffic Agents.

          5                 We will call upon  -- Mr. Killen,

          6  we'll have you rejoin us when we're going to get

          7  back into the oversight hearing.

          8                 At this time, we're going to call Ken

          9  Thorpe and Richard Thorpe from the New York Trucking

         10  and Delivery Association.

         11                 Following these two gentlemen, we'll

         12  call upon John Corbett from the Automobile

         13  Association of New York, the American Automobile

         14  Association and then following that will be David

         15  Snetman from Transportation Alternatives.

         16                 Gentlemen, please proceed.  Press the

         17  button so that the light is off.

         18                 MR. THORPE: Good morning.  Also to

         19  Speaker Miller, who is not present, I want to thank

         20  him for his prior efforts.

         21                 Chairman Liu, Council Members and

         22  guests, my name is Ken Thorpe, Chairman and CEO for

         23  NYTDA, the New York Trucking and Delivery

         24  Association.

         25                 I appreciate the opportunity provided
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          2  by this Council to testify today regarding laws and

          3  regulations enforced by City Traffic Agents.

          4                 I also want to thank the DOT and the

          5  Police Department for their earlier testimony, and

          6  we are all concerned about public safety and their

          7  efforts therein.

          8                 First, let me testify who and why the

          9  TDFA is, and why we formed.

         10                 The New York Trucking and Delivery

         11  Association was created in answer to the problems of

         12  independent truckers and delivery persons working in

         13  New York City whose problems as small business

         14  owners and/or operators of trucks and vans are very

         15  different than those of large fleet services such as

         16  UPS or large corporations, such as Pepsi.  They

         17  employ drivers or workers for their fleet of

         18  vehicles and arrange for many services and benefits

         19  for their employees.

         20                 Independents previously have not had

         21  the benefit of buying power, basic services, or a

         22  voice in the laws that directly affect them.  That

         23  is, until today.  As they now do through our

         24  organization, the NYTDA.  Though independent,

         25  together, their nondescript trucks rival or exceed
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          2  the numbers of trucks among UPS, FedEx, Airborne,

          3  and DHL combined, and are operating on streets of

          4  New York City every day.  They are no longer alone

          5  or unrepresented.

          6                 The mission of NYTDA is to create a

          7  group for independents that provides better buying

          8  power for the goods and services.  To obtain equity

          9  in the availability of government services and

         10  programs.  Unite independent truckers as a more

         11  powerful combined voice to begin the process of

         12  having the member concerns considered and

         13  legislation, laws, and the enforcement of both.

         14                 Which brings us to today's

         15  problematic issue. Traffic laws and their

         16  enforcement by DOT officers.

         17                 Understanding the problem of traffic

         18  laws and enforcement starts with understanding the

         19  relationship that exists between the DOT and the

         20  trucking and delivery industry in New York City.  As

         21  well as public perception of independent truckers.

         22                 Some of the factors that play a

         23  direct role in this problem are: The physical

         24  capacity of many streets or lack thereof; laws that

         25  do not consider that basic infrastructure problem;
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          2  hostilities caused by each group having differing

          3  priorities in relation to the other; or blind- side

          4  view that only sees their own part.  For example,

          5  the officer has a book of regulations, the trucker

          6  has items to deliver, and the average public wants

          7  goods delivered.  The officer and trucker are often

          8  at a conflict with each other, as their goals are

          9  diametrically opposed; laws conceived as an answer

         10  to a very specific and localized complaints or

         11  problems that do no consider the entire issue, and

         12  are not based on research and facts that represent

         13  overall impact.

         14                 More specifically, the culture of the

         15  traffic agent and the trucker.  DOT has developed a

         16  negative  street culture, in the enforcement of

         17  regulations.  This is particularly so with regard to

         18  the trucking industry but especially independent

         19  truckers and delivery persons who are not backed by

         20  high- powered companies such as UPS and FedEx.

         21  These powerful companies, due to their large size

         22  and known impact on New York City's economy, have

         23  special arrangements with the City that changes the

         24  culture in their favor and sets it apart from the

         25  one DOT officers have with the independents.
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          2                 To describe this negative culture,

          3  I'll provide some examples of what truckers

          4  experience.

          5                 When a UPS trucker gets a ticket,

          6  even one wrongfully issued, he can still smile and

          7  go about his work with no word to the officer at

          8  all.  The reason for this is that the UPS driver

          9  does not pay for that ticket.  UPS does, and when

         10  UPS get 10,000 tickets in a month, they will only

         11  pay a small portion of those tickets through a

         12  special program the DOF called the Fleet Program.

         13  This program rightfully considers that fact that UPS

         14  drivers have nowhere to park, and our economy

         15  requires them to be able to complete their jobs.

         16                 When it cones to independents, no

         17  such program exists.  NYTD was formed to represent

         18  these independents, and, among other things, we are

         19  requesting that the City Department of Finance

         20  create an NYTDA Fleet program for our members and

         21  implore this Committee as well as the DOF to support

         22  this motion today.

         23                 When the independent trucker gets a

         24  ticket for parking while unloading, he or she is

         25  parking there because he or she must.  The cost of
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          2  the ticket is coming directly out of his or her

          3  pocket, and his family's mouths.

          4                 On a side note, independent truckers

          5  are your neighbors. They're the people who bring you

          6  refrigerators, and the people who deliver a product

          7  from a store to you.  When you buy that dishwasher,

          8  that refrigerator, these are your neighbors

          9  delivering these items. These are not some

         10  strangers.

         11                 So the trucker must question the DOT

         12  officer to try to avoid the ticket.  The DOT officer

         13  often does not like being questioned, and using his

         14  or her rule book, with an omni-superior attitude,

         15  throws the trucker every ticket he or she can.  WE

         16  will provide you with testimony to give evidence of

         17  these problems.

         18                 Before I give this testimony, let me

         19  say that we believe that the Administration of DOT

         20  wishes to change these problems, but simply has been

         21  unable to change the street culture of the average

         22  ticket- issuing DOT officer.  On that note, I'd like

         23  to provide you with a quote from 2003 Downtown

         24  Commissioner, Andrew Salkin.

         25                 Illegal double parking is a sign that
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          2  better street engineering is needed.  This street is

          3  too narrow.  So people want to stop on a sidewalk,

          4  but the sidewalks are not programmed to have cars on

          5  it.  A lot of people say cops need to enforce that

          6  kind of illegal parking.  But I think engineering

          7  something that cops need to enforce is unacceptable.

          8    Cops have a hard enough time to do a job, not

          9  having to worry about engineering flaws.

         10                 Clearly, Commissioner Salkin

         11  recognized our problem. And the problem of officers

         12  having to enforce laws that do not work when the

         13  basic engineering flaws or engineering designed for

         14  the world 100 years ago adversely affects all the

         15  parties concerned.

         16                 However, this is two years later, and

         17  nothing has changed.  Having said that, it still

         18  needs to be dealt with.  While we recognize the

         19  infrastructural problems will take years to deal

         20  with, we must take care of the equally large problem

         21  of the DOT anti- truck culture by properly training

         22  these officers about the difference between illegal

         23  parking and necessary and otherwise acceptable

         24  parking that cannot be avoided,  and the City does

         25  deem to be necessary, a necessary evil to sustain
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          2  our economy.

          3                 In addition, we must not penalize the

          4  working trucker or delivery person unnecessarily for

          5  doing what we demand of him or her.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Thorpe.  Thank

          7  you very much- because we do have copies of your

          8  written testimony, and we can see your personal

          9  story.

         10                 (The following written testimony was

         11  read into the record)

         12                 Written testimony of Ken Thorpe,

         13  Chairman and CEO, New York Trucking and Delivery

         14  Association.

         15                 Now, I'd like to provide my personal

         16  testimony and examples of the current conduct DOT

         17  officers demonstrate pervasively based upon a

         18  culture created through the previously articulated

         19  environment.

         20                 MY STORY IN QUEENS.  On a weekday on

         21  a two lane roadway in Queens, I was on a truck with

         22  my brother Richie of R&J Home Delivery Service.

         23  It's just prior to the Jewish holiday season of

         24  Passover, which is a busy time for home delivery.

         25  Richie double parks the truck, as there are no
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          2  parking spots for blocks and the truck would require

          3  two regular parking spots.  Good luck to us finding

          4  such a spot.  Anyway, while the tailgate is down and

          5  a sub- zero refrigerator is being brought off the

          6  tailgate, the DOT officer pulls up on the opposite

          7  side of the street just ahead of the truck.  That

          8  meant that he passed by the back of the truck, which

          9  was clearly and visibly being unloaded.  I asked him

         10  why he was giving the ticket to our truck, which was

         11  actively unloading, and he said, "I did not see you

         12  unloading, I pulled up ahead of your", and he points

         13  to where his DOT case was parked on the opposite

         14  side of the street, just ahead of the truck.  I said

         15  that he had to see us unloading since he passed

         16  right by and even if for some reason he did not at

         17  first, how could he not see and hear the opening and

         18  lowering of the tail gate with a 600 pound fridge

         19  creaking its way down as he stood at the front left

         20  windshield.  He said, "I just give the ticket, tell

         21  the judge".  When asked again her offered another

         22  ticket for disorderly conduct if I proceeded. I now

         23  really understand what Richie and other truckers

         24  were talking about.  This guy had one and only one

         25  goal, to give a ticket.  It did not even matter if
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          2  he was blatantly wrong, let alone not considerate or

          3  fair in applying the law.  In fact, he lief to my

          4  face, knew I knew it, and dared me to object further

          5  and get another ticket.  This was not a case of

          6  someone not being trained. This is an agent with his

          7  own rules and standards of conduct that are a result

          8  of a misguided culture that prevails because it is

          9  at least allowed, if not condoned, by immediate

         10  supervision.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'd like to ask your

         12  colleague, Richard Thorpe to proceed with his

         13  testimony. Okay?

         14                 We have a number of people who still

         15  need to testify, and this hearing is scheduled to

         16  conclude at 1 P.M. at which point another hearing is

         17  scheduled.  So I'd ask all witnesses to be succinct.

         18                 MR. THORPE: Okay.  Good morning,

         19  Council.  My name is Richard Thorpe.  I am a member

         20  of NYTDA and an independent owner/operator of R&J

         21  Home Delivery Services.

         22                 I am here with Ken today to discuss

         23  the parking conditions for trucks unloading, loading

         24  in the five Boroughs of New York and treatment we

         25  receive from Traffic Officers.
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          2                 I am telling you these things from my

          3  recent personal experience and knowledge.  I've been

          4  in the trucking industry for over 20 years.

          5                 Borough Park Brooklyn, New York.

          6  Doing what we call a store drop.  That just means

          7  we're dropping the merchandise off at a store.

          8  Instead of to a customer.  Store drops are the least

          9  profitable delivery, but important, because the

         10  stores need the merchandise for their clients.

         11                 While unloading our trucks, a DOT

         12  officer approaches from the rear, sees the

         13  unloading, passes it by.  And then, without warning,

         14  without a word to us, will ticket us while going

         15  around to the front of the truck.

         16                 It used to be that officers would ask

         17  if you were going to be long, and allow you to

         18  finish.  If you were blocking something, they would

         19  ask you to move.  Now, they avoid you, seemingly

         20  intentionally, and ticket you when you are allowing

         21  your legal unloading at a store drop.  You make

         22  maybe $60 dollars if you are lucky to drop small

         23  merchandise off at a store, which will cost you $115

         24  dollars in a ticket.

         25                 On the Henry Hudson Parkway service
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          2  lane.  Parked at the curb, I was parked actively

          3  unloading three refrigerators to a building.  DOT

          4  officer, or a Police officer, I don't remember

          5  exactly, approached and Eddie, my helper, told the

          6  DOT officer he was unloading and would be done in a

          7  few minutes.  He explained he had three

          8  refrigerators for the building and couldn't unload

          9  two blocks away where the officer suggested we go

         10  park.

         11                 DOT officer cited Eddie for

         12  disorderly conduct and blocking traffic which there

         13  was none, and we were parked at the curb.

         14                 Brooklyn, New York.  We were parked

         15  unloading truck from curb due to a pile of snow and

         16  ice.  We could not get close to the curb.  DOT

         17  officer was attempting to give a New York City

         18  Councilman staff member a ticket for an expired

         19  meter.  Just prior to the ticket being written, the

         20  person we were delivering to put a quarter in the

         21  meter for the Councilman's staff member and told the

         22  DOT officer he should not write that ticket.  The

         23  meter maid said, "I'll write this one, then",

         24  referring to the one for our truck.  He proceeded to

         25  write the ticket for double parking and in addition,
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          2  for not having our company name on the truck door.

          3  Our truck was clearly marked on both sides of the

          4  body in full compliance of three DOT commercial

          5  marking requirements. The officer either did not

          6  know the law, or did not care.

          7                 When we complained about the tickets,

          8  the DOT said that the double- parking ticket problem

          9  is a sanitation problem and not his fault that we

         10  could not unload, park closer due to the snow.  The

         11  other ticket for the vehicle markings, he would not

         12  discuss at all.  This was vindictive and spiteful as

         13  a DOT officer was foiled in issuing a ticket to the

         14  Councilman's staff member by a good citizen and

         15  neighbor, and took it out on the trucker because he

         16  could.

         17                 New York, New York.  Our truck was

         18  double parked and broke down during a delivery in

         19  Manhattan.  With the cab lifted forward, and waiting

         20  for a tow truck, we had our signal flares out, we

         21  were issued a ticket by DOT.

         22                 Downtown Brooklyn.  In the vicinity

         23  of Hicks and Henry and Montague Street.  It is 98

         24  percent guaranteed you will get a ticket for

         25  delivering any product in this area.  There is no
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          2  parking available near brownstones and the stores in

          3  that neighborhood.  Many truckers won't deliver

          4  there or charge a surcharge for delivery there.

          5  Double parked to unload, and you will get a ticket.

          6  This is not the unloading law, but it is the

          7  practice.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Richard.

          9                 MR. THORPE: Thank you, Councilman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If we might

         11  continue.

         12                 We actually have, it looks like we

         13  have your written testimony that talks about your

         14  other example.  You've provided many examples

         15  already, and we thank you for the invitation about

         16  the free barbecue rally.

         17                 (The following written testimony was

         18  read into the record.)

         19                 Written testimony Ken Thorpe.

         20                 Clearly we see a current and

         21  pervasive problem with DOT officers enforcing the

         22  law, and much of this problem can be eliminated by

         23  better training officers and removing the discontent

         24  that Independent Truckers have as a result of

         25  economic difficulties created by unwarranted
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          2  tickets.  However, if DOT expects to enforce any

          3  laws, it needs to set an example itself.  DOT

          4  officers and officials are seen every day abusing

          5  the parking laws of this city and not while on

          6  official business.  Our members see this every day,

          7  as does the public.  If DOT officers want respect,

          8  they must apply the law in a fair manner with regard

          9  to our industry and not throw their position in our

         10  face by blatantly acting as though they are above

         11  the same law and thereby not making a mockery of it.

         12                 I will only provide one example to

         13  demonstrate our case.  The below picture is of a DOT

         14  officer or official car while he was getting dinner

         15  at a Chinese restaurant at approximately 6:45 PM on

         16  Thursday, June 16, 2005 while parked illegally at a

         17  bus stop in Brooklyn.  A part of me feels bad for

         18  him because we all as citizens have had problems

         19  finding parking but I cannot legitimize his behavior

         20  because his is not just any citizen, not just some

         21  guy, he is a representative of DOT, the civil

         22  servant agency that issues millions of parking

         23  tickets to everyone else each year for that same

         24  thing.

         25                 I have blocked the plate out for this
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          2  public hearing, as it is not our desire to seek a

          3  campaign against DOT or any particular individual,

          4  but rather to make a point and to create a starting

          5  place for a mutual understanding that we deserve and

          6  demand respectful treatment, given our difficult but

          7  important task working in the City of New York.  We

          8  desire and expect that the laws and infrastructure

          9  will be changed where possible to accommodate this

         10  industry that is invaluable to our city's economy,

         11  but until that time, we expect that the existing

         12  laws will be applied with full consideration and

         13  understanding that we are here doing a job for the

         14  retailers of NYC, the public/consumers, and again,

         15  the economy that pays the salaries of the Civil

         16  Service workers, including those ticketing us.

         17                 In closing, I want to thank the

         18  Chair, the Speaker, the committee on transportation

         19  and all those who have welcomed our testimony today

         20  on behalf of the NYTDA.  I further ask for your

         21  assistance on the matters we have placed before you,

         22  not only regarding DOT enforcement matters but also

         23  regarding getting the assistance we need today to

         24  put the NYTDA Fleet Program in place to bring equity

         25  in fines to these hard- working people, as well as
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          2  to reduce some of the tension between truckers and

          3  ticket- issuing officers.

          4                 NYTDA is planning a free BBQ, rally,

          5  and membership drive that is to be held July 17,

          6  2005 at Flushing Meadows/Corona Park in the Meadow

          7  Lake area for Independent Truckers and Delivery

          8  Persons, pending all permits being approved.  I have

          9  already invited members of this council and hereby

         10  restate that invitation as I am certain our members

         11  and future members would be interested in Council

         12  Representatives who are concerned about them and the

         13  problems they face.  Further I will make an open

         14  invitation to the DOT Commissioner to join us, to

         15  show that DOT is as willing to work with us as we

         16  are with them in building a better relationship

         17  between Independent Truckers and Delivery Persons

         18  and DOT for the betterment of NYC and its Citizens.

         19  Maybe DOT can even flash traffic advisories about

         20  this NYTDA event so that it does not impair traffic

         21  flow that day.  It would also serve as an

         22  information and event notification, and, I am sure

         23  truckers would love the attention and appreciate the

         24  advisory.

         25                 On behalf of NYTDA, the NY Trucking
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          2  and Delivery Association I want to thank Chairman

          3  Liu, Speaker Miller, the entire council and its

          4  staff for this opportunity to testify today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: At this time, I do

          6  need to take testimony from other people.  So I want

          7  to thank you for your patience.  I want to thank

          8  everybody for their patience, this has been a rather

          9  lengthy hearing.  But we always need to kind of

         10  exchange ideas and questions with members of the

         11  Administration as well.  Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. THORPE: Thank you, and I want to

         13  thank the Council.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Next we'll hear from

         15  John Corlett, from the American Automobile

         16  Association.

         17                 Following Mr. Corlett will be David

         18  Snetman from the Transportation Alternatives.  And

         19  after Mr. Snetman, we will hear Mr. Stanley

         20  Oppenheim from DGA Security Systems.

         21                 Mr. Corlett, please proceed.

         22                 MR. CORLETT: Good afternoon.  My name

         23  is John Corlett.  I am the Director of Government

         24  Affairs for the local Triple A affiliate.  And I

         25  thank you for inviting us and holding this hearing.
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          2                 I will attempt to summarize my

          3  testimony because I know it's been a long, long

          4  morning for everybody.

          5                 Like the Council, we also hear from

          6  our members with questions about parking tickets and

          7  complaints about parking enforcement practices.  And

          8  because of that, we've done two reviews of parking

          9  violations operations since 1998.  The most recent

         10  one we did was in 2003.  That review was prompted by

         11  several things including the fact that the Bloomberg

         12  Administration had hired several hundred more

         13  Traffic Enforcement Agents.

         14                 And, in 2003, the fines, as we all

         15  know, were doubled, as we all know, from $55 to $105

         16  dollars.  And the State also tripled the surcharge

         17  from $5 dollars to $15 dollars.

         18                 With those factors in mind, we

         19  decided to go in and conduct an audit or a review,

         20  whatever you want to call it, of the PBO.  We did

         21  find some problems.  In 1998, when Mayor Giuliani

         22  was the Mayor, we had conducted a similar audit, and

         23  we found a definite effort to kind of shred that

         24  dreaded mentality.  And there was definitely a

         25  consumer emphasis, trying to make the Centers more
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          2  user- friendly and things like that.

          3                 But our review this time found that

          4  that was kind of lacking.  There was not a consumer

          5  mentality as far as serving the public.  And we also

          6  found some issues that were very troubling, like the

          7  fact that the adjudication process seemed to be very

          8  inconsistent.  There was no adjudication manual.  If

          9  you go into one hearing room, you might see a judge

         10  rule one way on one violation.  You go into another

         11  hearing room and you may see a different type of

         12  outcome.  And I think that's very troubling.

         13                 Again, there was an emphasis on

         14  raising money, doubling the fines, hiring more

         15  enforcement personnel.  And I think that the

         16  Administration has kind of neglected the

         17  adjudication end of it.  And I did attach a full

         18  copy of our report to my testimony.

         19                 I'm also, just to comment on some of

         20  the issues that came up today -- I know Council

         21  Member Gentile mentioned the issue of lack of

         22  discretion, and I would say that I agree with you.

         23  For example, several years ago, the State redesigned

         24  the license plates, the Empire State plates.  Many

         25  of the plates now, if you have a plate frame from a
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          2  dealer, will cover up the words "Empire State".

          3  From what we can tell, the PBB telling agents, "no

          4  discretion" if you're covering up any part of the

          5  plate, with even a small amount of the frame, issue

          6  a ticket.  And we don't think that's fair.  We've

          7  had a lot of complaints about that.

          8                 As far as the number of tickets

          9  issued, I think it's interesting that when the

         10  Bloomberg Administration was seeking approval from

         11  Albany to double the fines, they made the case to

         12  the legislature that this would encourage compliance

         13  with the law.  And as far as I can tell, the number

         14  of tickets, I suspect, has remained the same, year

         15  after year.  That's one thing I wanted to point out.

         16                 Again, I don't want to read my whole

         17  statement, but I can tell you there is some

         18  improvement needed on the adjudication process, and

         19  I think that's been neglected in this debate.

         20                 Thank you.

         21

         22

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  We would

         24  certainly agree with you there.  And thank you for

         25  your support on our effort to raise the threshold
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          2  beyond which the vehicles become subject to tow.

          3  And in fact, we have passed that legislation in the

          4  City Council.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. CORLETT: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Next, we'll hear

          8  from David Snetman from Transportation Alternatives,

          9  to be followed by Stanley Oppenheim, from DGA

         10  Security Systems.  And then, Thomas Hillgardner,

         11  Albert Asfazadour, Joan Mazzeo, Paul Feldstein, and

         12  then Gilsom Safdeye.

         13                 Mr. Snetman, please proceed.

         14                 MR. SNETMAN: Good afternoon, Council

         15  Members and Mr. Chairman.  My name is David Snetman.

         16    I'm the Bicycle Campaign Coordinator at

         17  Transportation Alternatives. I would like to thank

         18  the Council the opportunity to speak on this

         19  important issue.

         20                 I'd like to start by saying that

         21  Transportation Alternatives fully supports New York

         22  City Police Department's efforts to vigorously

         23  enforce existing traffic laws, particularly those

         24  regarding double parking.

         25                 Double parking is not a matter of

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  convenience.  It is a safety issue.  In fact, the

          3  New York City Police Department itself attributes

          4  the recent precipitous drops in traffic fatalities

          5  to the crack down on double parking.

          6                 Obviously, one of our chief concerns

          7  is that double parked vehicles block bicycle lanes,

          8  forcing cyclists to swerve into lanes of traffic

          9  where they aren't expected, and thus, increasing the

         10  likelihood of often fatal crashes.

         11                 More importantly, however, double

         12  parkers endanger all road users by blocking the flow

         13  of traffic an forcing cars, trucks, cyclists and

         14  pedestrians to make dangerous veering maneuvers, and

         15  compete even more aggressively for even less space.

         16                 Not surprisingly, the Boston

         17  Transportation Department concluded in their major

         18  survey Access Boston, 2000 to 2010, that double

         19  parking is a key contributor to congestion on major

         20  corridors, and has a detrimental and a wide- ranging

         21  impact on the operation of the surface street

         22  system.

         23                 From their report, a blocked travel

         24  lane reduces the capacity of the street to handle

         25  traffic.  This can be particularly severe when
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          2  double parking occurs during peak commuting hours.

          3                 Other negative impacts of double

          4  parking include: Increased traffic on residential

          5  streets when motorists seek to avoid congestion on

          6  major corridors; degradation in the quality of bus

          7  service; decreased safety for pedestrians when

          8  double- parked cars block sight lines at cross

          9  walks; and safety concerns for motorists and

         10  bicyclists maneuvering around double- parked cars.

         11  End quote.

         12                 If the City Council is truly

         13  concerned about rationalizing and improving curbside

         14  access for delivery drivers and shopping motorists,

         15  as they should be, they would do well to ignore the

         16  pleas of leniency  from double parkers endangering

         17  the public, and instead, focus on pricing on- street

         18  parking to accurately reflect its scarcity and

         19  value.

         20                 I'd like to conclude with a quote

         21  from Donald Shoup's recent and well- regarded study,

         22   "The High Cost of Free Parking":

         23                  "Cruising and double parking are the

         24  direct results of underpriced curb parking.  And

         25  they greatly shrink the capacity of downtown
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          2  streets.  One double- parked car on a congested

          3  street can block an entire lane and back up traffic

          4  as far as the eye can see, because all drivers must

          5  merge into the narrowed road space. Double parking

          6  and cruising do not stem from the private market's

          7  failure to supply the right amount of off- street

          8  parking.  Instead, they stem from the government's

          9  failure to charge the right price for curb parking.

         10  If cities price curb parking to ensure a few

         11  vacancies, any increase in demand for the fixed

         12  supply of curb spaces will trigger an increase in

         13  their price, and shortages will not occur.

         14  Developers and merchants will be able to choose how

         15  many on- site spaces they want to supply for their

         16  customers, and cities will reap the value for any

         17  spillover parking as public revenue.  The purpose of

         18  right price curb parking is not to gouge drivers or

         19  maximize revenue.  Instead, the right price for curb

         20  parking is the lowest price that will avoid

         21  shortages."

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Snetman for your testimony, and thanks for coming

         25  down on short notice.
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          2                 MR. SNETMAN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And next we'll hear

          4  from Mr. Oppenheim.  To be followed by Mr.

          5  Hillgardner.

          6                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman for this opportunity.  I will be brief as

          8  possible.

          9                 My name is Stanley Oppenheim.  I am

         10  the President of DGA Security Systems.  We're a

         11  Security System installing company located here in

         12  New York.  We're in business for 36 years.  We are

         13  the largest independent security company in New York

         14  City.  And we have a fleet of approximately 12

         15  vehicles.

         16                 Unlike the previous testimony, we

         17  have not been subjected to tickets that, in the

         18  normal course of our business, that we view as

         19  unavoidable.  In fact, we feel that we've been

         20  subjected, for several years now, and increasingly

         21  so, to an injustice in the misinterpretation and the

         22  misapplication of the law that has cost my firm

         23  thousands of dollars and made us noncompetitive in

         24  the marketplace.

         25                 We've written the Commissioner of
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          2  Transportation on this, and have, unfortunately, the

          3  Commissioner has not viewed it important enough to

          4  respond to us.  That saddens me greatly that the

          5  members of the Department of Transportation have not

          6  remained to hear this testimony.  Mine, a member of

          7  the public, today, when the testimony, when this

          8  very meeting is about issues that directly affect

          9  them.  Yet they chose to leave.  Which disturbs me

         10  further.

         11                 I don't exactly know what a citizen

         12  is supposed to do to get response.  They don't

         13  respond to me.  They're not here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's not their job

         15  to stay here. This is a City Council hearing, and we

         16  will take your testimony and take whatever

         17  appropriate oversight or legislative actions that we

         18   --

         19                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Well, they haven't

         20  responded to my letters.  I wrote Federal Express

         21  letters to the Commissioner.  I don't get any

         22  answers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I make no excuse for

         24  them not responding to you.

         25                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Okay.  Let's get down
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          2  to the business at hand quickly.  The problem stems

          3  from a misinterpretation and a misapplication of a

          4  law in the City.  The law is based upon the

          5  Department of Transportation's justified need to

          6  differentiate between a commercial and a

          7  noncommercial vehicle for parking purposes.  This

          8  law has been on the books for decades, and it exists

          9  because there are members of the community who would

         10  take advantage of the use of commercial plates for

         11  parking reasons because parking privileges are

         12  afforded to commercial vehicles. But they would take

         13  advantage of it to have vehicles for their own

         14  personal use, not truly for commercial use.

         15                 They would use station wagons, in

         16  years past, and vans.  Use it for their personal

         17  use, put commercial license plates on the vehicle,

         18  and attempt to benefit from these parking

         19  privileges.

         20                 Years ago, the law was written on the

         21  books, number one, as we know, to put the names of

         22  the vehicle on the vehicle in three- inch letters so

         23  that clearly marks it as commercial.  And most

         24  importantly, to remove all seats from the vehicle

         25  beyond the front- row seats to make certain that the
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          2  vehicle is used only to transport merchandise.

          3                 This here is an excerpt of the law,

          4  it states that the vehicle has to be permanently

          5  altered by having all seats and seat fitting except

          6  the front seats to facilitate the transportation of

          7  property.  That's key.  To facilitate the

          8  transportation of property.

          9                 What people would do is fold down the

         10  seats in station wagons in order to defeat this.

         11  And that's why you'll note to say to remove all seat

         12  fittings as well.  Now this lies the problem of my

         13  entire problem.  We're now going to remove this.

         14                 I'm now going to show you one of our

         15  vehicles.  We are an alarm company.  This is the

         16  vehicle at hand.  In my view of life, this is an

         17  unmistakably irrefutably, unquestionably a

         18  commercial vehicle.  If it isn't a commercial

         19  vehicle, than I don't know what is a commercial

         20  vehicle.  It is a Ford 150 pickup truck with a

         21  commercial cap, ladder racks on top.  Yet, we

         22  received thousands, and thousands, and thousands of

         23  dollars worth of tickets each year.  An increase of

         24  350 percent this year, to date, over the same period

         25  last year because I am ticketed by Traffic
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          2  Enforcement Agents who state that this is a not

          3  commercial vehicle because, and I will show you why

          4  in a moment, and I will then get two tickets: One

          5  that it's a noncommercial vehicle, and the second

          6  ticket is that it's a noncommercial vehicle parking

          7  a commercial zone.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Oppenheim, I

          9  think we understand the point here --

         10                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Okay, here's the

         11  reason --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But is the law

         13  pretty clear?

         14                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Here's our vehicle.

         15  Here's our vehicle.  And let's remove the back seat.

         16    There is a bench seat behind the vehicle which

         17  enables our firm to transmit, to transport, several

         18  employees to a work site.  To make us remove that

         19  back seat, see the removal of that back seat was to

         20  differentiate between station wagons and vans.

         21  Removing this back seat will not, in any way,

         22  benefit the people of the City of New York.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that's not the

         24  issue.  The issue is -- I understand what you're

         25  saying.  I'm not sure --
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          2                 MR. OPPENHEIM: This is a

          3  misinterpretation of the law.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't know

          5  exactly, reading your own testimony here, it says

          6  except front seats.

          7                 MR. OPPENHEIM: That is what the law

          8  said.  The law did not envision a vehicle of this

          9  design.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  So what

         11  you're advocating is that we reexaming the law.

         12                 MR. OPPENHEIM: What I've stated is

         13  that that law is no longer applicable in this day

         14  and age, because this type of vehicle, 35 and 40

         15  years ago, and that's how old the law is, was not

         16  envisioned.  It was made to talk about station

         17  wagons and vans.

         18                 My removing of this -- this is an

         19  unquestionably, irrefutably commercial vehicle.

         20  Whether it had a seat or not.  The law was written

         21  for those people who used station wagons and vans.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But the law  -- see

         23  you can't come up with your own definition of what a

         24  commercial vehicle is.  I'm not disagreeing with you

         25  about the fact that the law, perhaps should be
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          2  updated.  What I'm saying here is that the law is

          3  clear about what a commercial vehicle is and what is

          4  not a commercial vehicle.  --

          5                 MR. OPPENHEIM: That law was written

          6  for different day when this vehicle was --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  So we need

          8  to reexamine the laws and to implement changes or

          9  inactions to the law if necessary.

         10                 But I don't think this Committee

         11  would fault a Traffic Agent for enforcing the law as

         12  it's currently written.

         13                 MR. OPPENHEIM: The Police would never

         14  give a ticket for this because they understand the

         15  intent of the law.  You have to understand the

         16  intent of the law to view this bench, to view this

         17  as a noncommercial vehicle is a person who is almost

         18  robotic in the performance of their duties.

         19                 This is a clearly -- there's nothing

         20  harmful to the people of New York to have that seat.

         21    That was a method of differentiation to determine

         22  a commercial from a noncommercial vehicle.  This is

         23  an unquestionably commercial vehicle.  None could

         24  look at it and not determine that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Your point is well
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          2  taken, Mr. Oppenheim.

          3                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Well, what do I do to

          4   -- I spend thousands of dollars a month on these

          5  tickets.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We will take a look

          7  at this issue, and propose legislative alternatives.

          8    In the meantime, I suggest that you -- however

          9  difficult it may be to get through to the

         10  Administration, we can only urge that you continue

         11  to do so with them.

         12                 MR. OPPENHEIM: To the Department of

         13  Transportation?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's correct.  And

         15  call the Mayor directly.  Call 311, have all of your

         16  employees call 311.

         17                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Is this the

         18  responsibility of the Department of Transportation?

         19  I thought -- do they make the laws or, do they in a

         20  sense enforce -- who would be -- is it the

         21  Department of Transportation that would be the

         22  person I should contact in fact?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The people who make

         24  the laws would be Members of this Council, and

         25  members of the State Legislature.
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          2  The people who write the regulations interpreting

          3  the Department of Transportation both at the City

          4  and State level.

          5                 MR. OPPENHEIM: So it should start

          6  with them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's correct.

          8                 MR. OPPENHEIM: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Thanks

         10  for your time today.

         11                 Yes, at this point, come on up.

         12                 MR. HILLGARDNER: Thank you very much

         13  for having this hearing.  I got this on short

         14  notice, 8 o'clock this morning I found out about

         15  this hearing.  I have no prepared remarks, but I

         16  found the testimony of Director Valles very

         17  interesting, and I have a few comments on what he

         18  had to say.

         19                 With regard to the accuracy of

         20  summonses that train people, and most of my comments

         21  are related to training and summons issuance.  With

         22  regard to saying that they train the Agents for

         23  accuracy of the summonses, those determinations are

         24  made from the face of the summons.  The supervisors

         25  do not go out into the street and find out if the
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          2  violations actually occurred.  They're really just

          3  checking to see if the summons complies with the

          4  State law to make out a prima facia case.  That

          5  means, whether they're going to get their money.

          6                 There's really no inspection to

          7  determine whether the ticket was justly issued.  And

          8  to that extent, there's no determination with regard

          9  to summons accuracy at all.

         10                 With regard to discretion.  It's a

         11  tough issue.  I think the late Jerry Orbach, in Law

         12  and Order, told the whole country one day, I'll

         13  never forget this episode, "Once the pen hits the

         14  paper" -- we've all heard it -- "Once the pen hits

         15  the paper, the summons has got to be written".

         16  Should that really apply, when in the midst of

         17  writing the summons, the Agent determines that he

         18  was wrong.  The summons shouldn't issue.  At the

         19  bottom of the summons for it says, "I affirm, under

         20  the penalties of perjury, that this violation

         21  occurred in my presence".  Well, once the pen hits

         22  the paper, it doesn't matter any more.  Even if I'm

         23  wrong. There's something wrong with that.  That's an

         24  area of discretion where there really should be

         25  looked into.
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          2                 Training.  I cannot believe that any

          3  Traffic Enforcement Agent in this City has been

          4  trained how to issue a summons, to serve a summons

          5  in compliance with the Vehicle and Traffic Law.

          6  Repeatedly, despite the fact that the Vehicle and

          7  Traffic Law is exceedingly clear, that you are

          8  supposed to issue the summons, the operator of the

          9  vehicle, if he's present and asks for his name, this

         10  is never done.  In fact, they're taught, they're

         11  trained to disobey that law, and to only affix the

         12  summons to the vehicle.

         13                 Now, this is an injustice to the

         14  registered owner of the vehicle, because the

         15  operator is supposed to be jointly and separately

         16  liable if he can be identified, his name's on the

         17  ticket.  He's also can be a respondent on the

         18  ticket.  So that's problematic.

         19                 Finally, it has come to my attention

         20  that it's the policy, and I believe all the Traffic

         21  Agents are trained this way, that if you drive away

         22  before they finish writing a ticket, those tickets

         23  are input into the computer system at the Department

         24  of Finance anyway. Even though, State Vehicle and

         25  Traffic Law is very plain.  There's only two ways to
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          2  issue a ticket.  You either have to personally serve

          3  it on the operator who is physically present, or

          4  conspicuously affix it to the vehicle.

          5                 If the vehicle drives away, besides

          6  that that's evidence that it's not parked, it should

          7  not be served.

          8                 But there is now -- you see, in DOF,

          9  you'll see written right on the tickets, oh, this is

         10  a drive- away.  They even speak about this as a

         11  category of tickets.  Oh, drive- away tickets. Well,

         12  those drive- away tickets -- and this is why this

         13  whole big picture here has got to also look into DOF

         14  and adjudication -- I hear Mr. Corlett from the

         15  Triple A one hundred percent -- but with regard to

         16  service, those tickets should all be thrown out.

         17  They should have never been put into the system.

         18                 I want to thank you for your time

         19  today, and I really hope that you look into this.

         20  This is a big problem.  And I see, it's one o'clock

         21  and thanks very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We're looking into

         23  it.

         24                 It's one o'clock.  We have a few more

         25  people.  And I know several people are here for the
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          2  next hearing.

          3                 We next have a panel consisting of

          4  Jane Kelly and Albert Asfazadour.  And Peter Killen.

          5                 And next, we'll have a final panel,

          6  consisting of Joan Mazzeo, Paul Feldstein, and

          7  Gilsom Safdeye.

          8                 While this panel is preparing, let me

          9  ask the Clerk to call the roll on Council Member

         10  James Sanders for the votes on Resolution 973 and

         11  Intro. No. 664.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. No. 664,

         13  Council Member Sanders

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Resolution 973,

         16  Council Member Sanders

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Both items stand at 10

         19  in the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         20  abstentions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         22  Member Sanders.

         23                 Please proceed.

         24                 MR. ASFAZADOUR: Chairman, thank you.

         25  Other Members of the Council, thank you.  My name is
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          2  Albert Asfazadouur, and I'm a resident of Bay Ridge,

          3  Brooklyn.  I'm also a member of the Bay Ridge

          4  Consumer Federation.

          5                 I'm here to talk to you today about

          6  the signage and the traffic enforcement in Bay

          7  Ridge.  Every block in my community has signage on

          8  it restricting parking to some degree.  What has

          9  happened in the past is that the signage has become

         10  more restrictive, that even on Sunday, there is

         11  metered parking on Sundays on 5th Avenue.

         12                 I want to refer to two things that

         13  were brought up this morning, right here at this

         14  hearing.  One of the things is expectations of

         15  Agents, and that is one of the things that I want to

         16  talk about.  I find that there's very aggressive

         17  enforcement with no discretion.  Councilman Gentile

         18  brought out how unreasonable and insensitive some of

         19  the enforcement is.

         20                 Councilman Martinez wants to know how

         21  many Agents are sent to his region.  I'm quite sure

         22  Councilman Gentile will also be very interested.

         23  Because there is the feeling in Bay Ridge, that we

         24  are very specially pointed out because we pay our

         25  summonses.  A very high percentage.  Very unusual.
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          2  A community that responds to summonses.  And this is

          3  one of the things, when we have aggressive

          4  enforcement, insensitive enforcement, I'm bringing

          5  this to your attention so that something is done

          6  about it.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 MS. KELLY: Yes.  In response to the

         10  aggressive.

         11                 I did not -- I'm Jane Kelly, from Bay

         12  Ridge.

         13                 A couple of months ago, I was looking

         14  for a place to park, and there had been signs, red

         15  signs, "No Parking" between these signs.  But when I

         16  was driving by, the signs had been removed.

         17  Apparently it was a "t" intersection.  They have

         18  removed the signs.

         19                 So I parked there on a Saturday

         20  night. When I went there on Monday morning, I had

         21  two tickets for $135 dollars each, for blocking a

         22  pedestrian crossing.  There was no signage there,

         23  and it had been a rainy night.  Even looking around,

         24  I thought I had just gotten the ticket for no

         25  parking between signs.  But someone had done
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          2  something about them.

          3                 I called the Community Board, and

          4  they came to look at it, and they said that there

          5  was no signage, and it was very difficult to see the

          6  pedestrian crossings because it's outside the park,

          7  and the mud and the leaves cover it.  And the curb

          8  is hardly above the street level.

          9                 Both of these tickets were issued in

         10  less than 24 hours.  One on a Sunday afternoon, and

         11  one on a Monday morning at 6 o'clock.  Our Community

         12  Board Chairman had given me a letter to bring down

         13  with the two tickets.  The judge didn't even read

         14  the letter and forgave the one and I had to pay the

         15  other.  Even though said the east side, the other

         16  one said the west side.  They were not correctly

         17  written.

         18                 But I think that there should be some

         19  signage.  If I got out and looked and couldn't find

         20  any reason for not parking, I don't think it was

         21  justified to give these tickets.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         23                 Mr. Killen.

         24                 MR. KILLEN: The Bay Ridge Consumer

         25  Federation, during the summer of 2004 did a complete
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          2  survey of all of Bay Ridge.  We looked at every "No

          3  Parking" sing, "No Standing" sign. And signs that

          4  were put up in the community 50 years ago where 50

          5  years ago the law was, you shouldn't park in a

          6  specific location, and there was a reason for it.

          7  And today, those signs are still there.

          8                 So, my committee, including Mr.

          9  Asfazadour went out, did this complete survey, and

         10  we found something like 100 locations where signs

         11  should be removed.  We met, with the cooperation and

         12  the help of Councilman Gentile, we met with the DOT,

         13  they promised they would look at all the signs.  And

         14  sure enough, they did.  They gave us 23 more parking

         15  spaces in Bay Ridge that we never had before.

         16                 We feel that there are over 100 more

         17  parking spaces in our community that should be given

         18  to the driving public.  Every parking spot that

         19  shows up that you could park in means one less

         20  aggressive Traffic Enforcement Agent who's going to

         21  come and give you a summons.

         22                 In the meantime, when Mrs. Kelly was

         23  talking about the summons that she received at a

         24  pedestrian ramp, there are 13 pedestrian ramps in

         25  Bay Ridge right now that have no crosswalks attached
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          2  to them.  In a rainy night, in a dark night, on a

          3  clear day, you as a driver, park your car, you are

          4  never going to see these pedestrian ramps.  Every

          5  Traffic Enforcement Agent knows where they are.  One

          6  of the first things they do when they come into our

          7  Bay Ridge community, in the car, in their dark blue

          8  cars, is drive down Shore Road, and, whenever they

          9  see a car blocking one of these pedestrian ramps,

         10  they issue a summons.

         11                 We went out and we found a little

         12  truck parked at a pedestrian ramp with two summonses

         13  on them, two days in a row.  The summonses are for

         14  $165 dollars, Jane, not $135 dollars.  And the

         15  driver does not know that he or she is parking by a

         16  pedestrian ramp.  You cannot see them, they're

         17  invisible, they're just a little curb cut.  And when

         18  I was growing up and I hope that the gentleman from

         19  Triple A is still here, we were told "Cross at the

         20  green, not in between".  And here, the Department of

         21   -- the DOT puts pedestrian ramps unmarked, no

         22  crosswalks, in the middle of blocks, forcing

         23  handicapped people in a wheelchair to come out in

         24  the middle of traffic, with no stop signs, no

         25  traffic lights.  And they want them to cross in the
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          2  middle of the block.

          3                 We feel it is wrong.  Bay Ridge

          4  Consumer Fed, with Councilman Gentile, and I hope

          5  with this Council, will fight DOT and ask that every

          6  pedestrian ramp has a crosswalk attached to it.

          7                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Killen. And thank you all for testifying today.

         10                 We now have a final panel of

         11  witnesses.  Please join us at the witness table.

         12  Joan Mazzeo, Paul Feldstein, and Gisom Safdeye.

         13                 This will be the -- in addition to

         14  this panel, we had three people who were testifying

         15  in favor of Intro. No. 646 requiring a hybrid

         16  electric taxicab to be approved for use as a City

         17  taxicab.  They have submitted their written

         18  testimony.  Those people would be Todd Sigaty from

         19  Coalition for Smart Transportation; Mark Izeman from

         20  the Natural Resources Defense Council; and Bob

         21  Muldoon from the Sierra Club.

         22                 I want to thank those three

         23  individuals for attending today's hearing and

         24  submitting written testimony.

         25                 (The following written testimony was
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          2  read into the record)

          3                 Testimony of Bob Muldoon, Associate

          4  Regional Representative, the national Sierra Club:

          5                 Good morning.  My name is Bob

          6  Muldoon, an Associate Regional Representative with

          7  the national Sierra Club field office in New York

          8  City.  The Sierra Club is one of the oldest and

          9  largest grass roots environmental organizations in

         10  the country, with over 750,000 members nationwide

         11  and over 15,000 members in New York City.

         12                 Sierra Club thanks the Transportation

         13  Committee, and especially Speaker Miller, Chairman

         14  Liu, and Councilmember Yassky for all of the work

         15  that they have put into this legislation that would

         16  allow hybrid electric vehicles to be used as taxis.

         17                 Hybrid electric vehicles are much

         18  cleaner, much cheaper to operate and will help lower

         19  our dependence on foreign oil.  When compared to the

         20  Ford Crown Victoria, hybrids can cut smog pollutants

         21  by over 80%, reduce greenhouse gas emissions by

         22  almost 40%, double gas mileage and cut fuel costs in

         23  half.  These are tremendous improvements in a city

         24  where 1 in 8 people are plagued by asthma or

         25  symptoms of asthma.  It is also a smart policy for
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          2  our coastal city that will be threatened later in

          3  this century by rising sea level from global

          4  warming.

          5                 Hybrid cars are mainstream, reliable

          6  vehicles that do not require special maintenance,

          7  special fuel or plug- in or any investment in

          8  infrastructure.  They achieve pollution reductions

          9  and fuel efficiency by combining a gas engine with

         10  an electric engine.  The electric engine kicks in at

         11  low speeds and at idle. This reduces fuel

         12  consumption and allows the gas engine to power the

         13  vehicle in a narrower band of speed where it is most

         14  efficient and less polluting.

         15                 Hybrids have received high ratings

         16  from the auto industry, including the Donlen

         17  Corporation, Consumer Reports and Motor Trend

         18  Magazine.  The battery and hybrid technology have

         19  manufacturer warranties of a minimum of 8 hears or

         20  100,000 miles. In the past year, new fuel efficient

         21  hybrid models have been introduced for the Ford

         22  Escape, the Toyota Highlander, the Lexus SUV

         23  (RX400h) and the Accord sedan.

         24                 The City of San Francisco now has 15

         25  Ford Escape hybrids as taxis on a trial basis.  The
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          2  fleet operator managing these vehicles told us that

          3  he is very happy with their performance as taxis,

          4  especially on the steep hills of that area.  The San

          5  Francisco Chronicle quoted a cabby as saying that he

          6  had dropped his daily fuel bill by almost two-

          7  thirds.

          8                 Let's be clear on what would happen

          9  with this bill. This legislation would not force

         10  cabbies to drive hybrid electric vehicles.  Instead

         11  it would make them approved vehicles for use as

         12  taxis.  It will be up to medallion owners to try out

         13  a hybrid electric vehicles.

         14                 Sierra Club and other groups here

         15  today have spent the past year meeting with the Taxi

         16  & Limousine Commission staff, representatives of the

         17  taxi industry and other interested parties. The

         18  legwork has been done -- all of the parties have had

         19  an opportunity to see and evaluate hybrid electric

         20  vehicles.  Bids have been made for Alternative Fuel

         21  Vehicle medallions and there is strong interest in

         22  the taxi industry in using hybrid electric vehicles.

         23    Hybrid electric vehicles are mainstream vehicles

         24  and the number of hybrid models currently on the

         25  market is growing each year.  San Francisco has
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          2  moved ahead of us and has already rolled out a small

          3  fleet of hybrid taxis.

          4                 This legislation is a critical first

          5  step in moving to a clean taxi fleet.  The impact

          6  will go beyond the NYC taxi fleet, into other

          7  service fleets as well as other taxi fleets in the

          8  region and across the nation.

          9                 The hybrid era has arrived.  We have

         10  waited long enough.  It's time for the TLC to

         11  approve some of the hybrid electric vehicles

         12  currently on the market so cabbies can use this

         13  breakthrough technology to drive less polluting,

         14  more fuel efficient vehicles.

         15                 (The following testimony was read

         16  into the record)

         17                 Testimony of Craig Wilson

         18                 Good Morning.  My name is Craig

         19  Wilson and I am the Director Of New York City Policy

         20  and Advocacy for the New York League of Conservation

         21  Voters.

         22                 Founded in 1989, the League is the

         23  nonpartisan political arm of New York's

         24  environmental community and seeks to make

         25  conservation and natural resources protection top
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          2  priorities with New York's elected officials,

          3  political candidates, businesses, and voters.  On

          4  behalf of the League, I am pleased to be here today

          5  to offer our full support for Intro. 664.

          6                 There is no shortage of evidence

          7  regarding the challenges New York City faces with

          8  respect to air quality and the host of associated

          9  public health and environmental concerns.  As such,

         10  it is critical that the City take every opportunity

         11  to address this problem.  If enacted, Intro. 664

         12  will offer numerous economic and environmental

         13  benefits, as it seeks to allow for the conversion of

         14  the City's 12,500 plus cabs.

         15                 Most notably, this legislation has

         16  the potential to significantly reduce emissions that

         17  lead directly to smog and poor air quality.

         18  Additionally, the increased fuel efficiency hybrid

         19  vehicles offer over the standard Crown Victoria will

         20  translate into considerable financial savings for

         21  taxi drivers.

         22                 Recognizing the environmental, public

         23  health and financial benefits hybrid vehicles offer,

         24  the League urges the swift passage of Intro. 662 and

         25  the corresponding approval of hybrid vehicles for
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          2  use as a New York City taxi by the TLC.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We'll now proceed

          5  with our final panel of three witnesses.  Ms. Mazzeo

          6  please proceed.

          7                 MS. MAZZEO: Hi, my name is Joan

          8  Mazzeo and I want to thank everyone for allowing me

          9  to be here today, based on my story of the lack of

         10  CPR of the Traffic Enforcement Agents.

         11                 I have a son who is disabled.  I have

         12  a disability sign that I put in my window when I

         13  park on an alternate side of the street because of

         14  my son.

         15                 On a particular Friday in last month,

         16  I saw a sanitation truck coming down the block in

         17  order to clean the street.  There was also a Traffic

         18  Enforcement Agent there at the time.  I placed the

         19  car on the wrong side of the street, which was

         20  double parking just to allow my son into the house.

         21  He is autistic, and I could not allow him to cross

         22  the street.

         23                 I would have been legal parking on

         24  the alternate side of the street and allowing the

         25  sanitation truck to go around me, but I felt that
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          2  it's necessary for the sanitation to clean the

          3  streets.

          4                 The DOT or the Traffic Enforcement

          5  Agents issue this to people with disabilities.  They

          6  should understand that that is the reason that I

          7  double parked for the two minutes that I double

          8  parked.

          9                 I brought the child in the house, I

         10  came out of the house, the street cleaner was still

         11  on the block, while the Traffic Enforcement Agent

         12  continued to write my summons, and I moved my car to

         13  the other side.  And I said to her, you know, that

         14  was really nasty.  All I did, was move my son out of

         15  the car and into the house.  I came right out to

         16  move the car.  You couldn't wait the one minute.  I

         17  said, you'd rather see this street dirty.  She goes,

         18  well, you were parked illegally.  I said, but I

         19  could have parked legally and had the sanitation

         20  truck not clean the street.  She goes, isn't that

         21  too bad.

         22                 That shoes a great deal of CPR on

         23  their part, doesn't it?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 Mr. Feldstein.
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          2                 MR. FELDSTEIN: Yes, I'm in Councilman

          3  Gentile's district in Dyker Heights, Bensonhurst.  I

          4  thank you all for having me her to bring out my

          5  story.

          6                 Back in April, I was in Bay Ridge to

          7  do business with a pharmacy for a medical condition

          8  which I have, and there are time- sensitive

          9  medications involved.  I had to go briefly into the

         10  pharmacy to drop off medication.  My car was double

         11  parked and my four- way flashers were on.  I had a

         12  licensed driver in the car to be able to move it.

         13  Suddenly, a Police Officer approaches the rear, did

         14  not check to see if the car could be moved with a

         15  driver in it, writes up that ticket, then comes up

         16  forward to the windshield to place it.  My licensed

         17  driver came out of the car. An exchangement (sic)

         18  went on, and I came out and we had an aggressive

         19  discussion with the officer so he could hopefully

         20  rescind what he was doing.  And this is very

         21  aggressive practice that's going on. It's really

         22  getting impossible to do business, even briefly.

         23                 If we were able to park the car in a

         24  metered spot or in a standard parking spot, in

         25  residential area, in that area of Bay Ridge, I would
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          2  have done so.  There's no need for you to double

          3  park briefly if I can do standard parking otherwise.

          4                 That's all I really have to say.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          6                 Mr. Feldstein, can you identify

          7  yourself for the record?

          8                 MR. FELDSTEIN: Paul Feldstein, from

          9  Dyker Heights, Bensonhurst.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, and Ms.

         11  Safdeye.

         12                 MS. SAFDEYE: Yes.  My name is Gilsom

         13  Safdeye.  I live in the Flatbush area.

         14                 I'm here because I want to ameliorate

         15  the overzealousness of these Traffic Enforcement

         16  Agents.  I was parked at a bus stop on Avenue J

         17  waiting for my son to cross the street from picking

         18  up his laundry.  While I was there, there was a

         19  witness who saw what went on, and I'd like to read

         20  exactly what he wrote.  He came up to me after he

         21  saw the whole incident, said that if I needed a

         22  witness, he'd be very happy to cooperate, and gave

         23  me his card.

         24                 He writes-" I was walking on Avenue J

         25  when I passed three meter maids walking along the
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          2  Avenue talking.  As I approached the corner of East

          3  15th Street, I saw one of the Meter Maids say to the

          4  other- "Look, there is someone I can get".  The

          5  second Meter Maid said- "Go get her sister".  I

          6  quickly ran ahead to try to warn this lady that she

          7  should move her car in front of the bus stop.  But

          8  as I knocked on her window, the Meter Maid ran up

          9  and said -- and this is what I heard her say --

         10   "Don't you dare move that car or you'll be in even

         11  more trouble.

         12                  "As you can imagine"  -- then he

         13  goes on -- "the lady in the car became a little

         14  upset" and he continues on to say what happened was

         15  that the meter, the Traffic Agent gave me a summons.

         16  And I went to appeal at the Motor Vehicles and the

         17  fellow who saw this letter and asked me some

         18  questions, decided that the letter did not say that

         19  I was sitting behind the wheel and I could have

         20  moved if the Traffic Officer could have just knocked

         21  on my window and told me, move lady.

         22                 That's what he said, so I paid the

         23  $115 dollar summons.  I decided to appeal it and I

         24  have an appeal date for July 11th of this year.

         25                 Thank you for listening, and I really
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          2  feel this City is very, very handicapped for all

          3  these Meter Maids who are making our lives very

          4  miserable, as well as hurting the small business

          5  person on the Avenue.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          8  I want to thank you for joining us in this hearing

          9  today and for your patience. This has been a long

         10  hearing. Thank you. And you're well represented by

         11  Vinnie Gentile.

         12                 We have a quick question from Council

         13  Member Felder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         15  much, Chairman.

         16                 I just wanted to praise you for this

         17  hearing, and to mention two points, quick ones.

         18                 First of all, I think that our

         19  constituents, certainly the last witness may live in

         20  my district, but certainly was traveling in my

         21  district. I think that constituents throughout the

         22  City think that they're acting like vulchers, and

         23  there are some of them out there that are acting

         24  like vulchers. They wait by the meters til the meter

         25  goes out. They don't walk down the block, they see
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          2  that a meter is about to expire, they wait there til

          3  it expires, just like they wait for somebody to park

          4  somewhere where they shouldn't park. So, the

          5  question is, you know, what's lacking really is the

          6  common sense, what we call saho (phonetic), the

          7  common sense that when somebody sees somebody that

          8  has to bring a disabled child or an elderly person

          9  into somewhere or in front of the medical center and

         10  they see they're getting out, then they don't use

         11  the common sense, that is what is outrageous.

         12                 I want to commend you for this

         13  hearing, and in addition on that issue of the areas

         14  where people park, on one side of the street there

         15  are lines, on the other side there is no lines, we

         16  have a letter in writing, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 We asked Commissioner Weinshall to

         18  remove those places a long time ago, and I'm hoping

         19  that as a result of your hearing that will happen.

         20  Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And one

         22  very final and brief comment from Council Member

         23  Gentile.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

         25  thank you for having this meeting.
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          2                 I just wish the NYPD were here to

          3  listen to these last two panels. Oh, you're still

          4  here, great. Because you have seen the frustration

          5  of lack of CPR, Courtesty, Professionalism and

          6  Respect, that was not displayed to these individuals

          7  on this panel and the last panel, and the fact is

          8  without giving these agents discretion, you're not

          9  going to have CPR. And this is going to continue,

         10  New Yorkers are going to throw their hands up in

         11  frustration because of this policy.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         14  Members Felder and Gentile.

         15                 Thank you to everybody who has

         16  participated in today's hearing. The Transportation

         17  Committee Hearing is now adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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